
   

 

 

CITY OF BERKELEY 
PERSONNEL BOARD MEETING 

1301 Shattuck Avenue 
Live Oak Community Center, Creekside Room 

Berkeley, CA  94704 
December 4, 2023 

7:00 p.m. 
 

Secretary:  Aram Kouyoumdjian, Human Resources Director 
2180 Milvia Street, First Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704 

(510) 981-6800 
akouyoumdjian@berkeleyca.gov 

 
 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to 
participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 
981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date. Please refrain from wearing 
scented products to this meeting. To submit an e-mail comment, email hr@berkeleyca.gov with the Subject Line in this 
format: “PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM ##.” Please observe a 150-word limit. Time limits on public comments will apply. 
 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

II. Roll Call 
 

III. Public Comment 
 

ACTION ITEMS: 
 

IV. Approval of Meeting Minutes for November 6, 2023  
 

V. Adjustment to City Attorney Salary Range and Revised Salary 
 

VI. Recommendation to Revise Job Class Specification – Parking Services Manager 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS:   
 

VII. Presentation by Equal Employment Opportunity and Diversity Officer – Discussion Only 
 

VIII. Report from Director of Human Resources– Discussion Only 
 

IX. Copy of Berkeley Matters – Discussion Only 
 

X. Adjournment 
 
 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part of the City’s 
electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website.  Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication to a City board, 
commission or committee, will become part of the public record.  If you do not want your e-mail address or any other 
contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the 
secretary of the relevant board, commission or committee.  If you do not want your contact information included in the 
public record, please do not include that information in your communication.  Please contact the secretary to the relevant 
board, commission or committee for further information. SB 343 Disclaimer:  Any writings or documents provided to a 
majority of the Commission regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at the Human 
Resources Department located at 2180 Milvia Street, First Floor, Berkeley, California, 94704. 
 
 
 

mailto:akouyoumdjian@berkeleyca.gov
mailto:hr@berkeleyca.gov


   

   

 

 

CITY OF BERKELEY 
MEETING OF THE PERSONNEL BOARD 

1301 Shattuck Avenue 
Live Oak Community Center, Fireside Room 

Berkeley, CA  94704 
November 6, 2023 

7:00 P.M. 
 

Secretary:  Aram Kouyoumdjian, Human Resources Director 
2180 Milvia Street, First Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704 

(510) 981-6800    
hr@cityofberkeley.info 

 
 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

I. Call to Order 7:02 pm 
 

II. Roll Call 
 
Members Present: Robert Dixon (Chair), Darryl Bartlow, Mary Kay Lacey, Nic O’Loughlin, Jenny Wenk 

 
Members Absent: Aviva Gilbert (Vice Chair), Maya Karpinski 
 
Staff Present: Aram Kouyoumdjian (Director of Human Resources); Monica Walker (Human Resources 

Manager) 
 
Public Attendance: None 
 

III. Public Comments 
 
None. 

 
ACTION ITEMS: 
 

IV. Approval of Minutes of Meeting on October 2, 2023 
 
Action:  MSC (Wenk/Bartlow) to approve the minutes of the meeting on October 2, 2023 with a correction to 
change Mary Kay Lacey to absent. 
 
Vote: Ayes:   Bartlow, Dixon, Lacey, O’Loughlin, Wenk 
 Noes:   None 
 Abstains:  None 

Absent:  Gilbert, Karpinski 
 

V. Request to Establish Classification and Salary Range – Community Preparedness Educator 
 
Action: Item was pulled from the meeting agenda. 

 
VI. Recommendation to Amend Job Class Specification – Audit Manager 

 
Action:  MSC (Lacey/Wenk) to approve Recommendation to Amend Job Class Specification – Audit Manager 
 
Vote: Ayes:   Bartlow, Dixon, Lacey, O’Loughlin, Wenk 
 Noes:   None 
 Abstains:  None 
            Absent:  Gilbert, Karpinski 

 
VII. Recommendation to Amend Parking Meter Supervisor and Traffic Maintenance Supervisor 

mailto:hr@cityofberkeley.info


   

   

 

 
Action:  MSC (O’Loughlin/Wenk) to approve Recommendation to Amend Parking Meter Supervisor and Traffic 
Maintenance Supervisor. 
 
Vote: Ayes:   Bartlow, Dixon, Lacey, O’Loughlin, Wenk 
 Noes:   None 
 Abstains:  None 
            Absent:  Gilbert, Karpinski 

 
VIII. Recommendation to Amend Job Class Specifications – Assistant Human Resources Analyst and Associate 

Human Resources Analyst 
 
Action:  MSC (Dixon/Bartlow) to approve Recommendation to Amend Assistant Human Resources Analyst and 
Associate Human Resources Analyst. 
 
Vote: Ayes:   Bartlow, Dixon, Lacey, O’Loughlin, Wenk 
 Noes:   None 
 Abstains:  None 
 Absent:  Gilbert, Karpinski 

 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS:   
 

IX. Director’s Report – Updates from HR Director – Discussion Only 
 

X. Copy of Berkeley Matters – Discussion Only 
 

XI. Adjournment               8:04 pm 
 
 

 



   

   

 

 
Human Resources 

 

PERSONNEL BOARD 

    December 4, 2023 

 

To:  Members of the Personnel Board 

 

From:  Aram Kouyoumdjian, Director of Human Resources 

 

Subject:  Adjustment to City Attorney Salary Range and Revised Salary 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Increase the top of the City Attorney salary range to $360,000 annually. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The recommendation raises the top range of the City Attorney’s compensation from $313,408.42 to 

$360,000.00, which will be absorbed by the General Fund. 

 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 

The recommendation follows an extensive evaluation of the City Attorney’s job performance conducted by 

a designated City Council Committee in conjunction with an outside consultant, Christopher Boucher, 

Esq., of Boucher Law, PC. 

 

The evaluation included a salary survey which revealed that the midpoint of the City Attorney salary 

lagged behind that of comparable jurisdictions by nearly 25%. The proposed adjustment to the salary 

range seeks to rectify that lag and to keep the position competitive in the market. 

 

BACKGROUND 

Boucher Law, PC, was selected as the firm to assist with the City Attorney evaluation following outreach 

by the Human Resources Department to several firms inviting them to bid for the consultancy. Mr. 

Boucher’s firm was selected due to his licensed status as an attorney, as well as his former experience as 

a Human Resources Director. 

 

The evaluation, which was conducted over several months, included a broad survey of City Attorney 

compensation among surrounding agencies including Alameda County, City of Concord, Contra Costa 

County, City of Fremont, City of Hayward, City of Oakland, City of Palo Alto, City of Richmond, City and 

County of San Francisco, City of San Jose, San Mateo County, and Santa Clara County. The survey 

revealed that the City of Berkeley ranked 12th out of 13 agencies when salary midpoints were compared 

and lagged behind the median by 24.88%. 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY 

There are no identifiable environmental effects or opportunities associated with the subject of this report. 

 

RATIONAL FOR RECOMMENDATION 



   
Page 2 of 5 

 

Adjustment to City Attorney Salary Range and Revised Salary December 4, 2023  

                                           

 

A salary survey highlighted the need to modify the City Attorney salary range in order to make it 

competitive in comparable markets. 

 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 

None. 

 

  



   
Page 3 of 5 

 

Adjustment to City Attorney Salary Range and Revised Salary December 4, 2023  

                                           

 

 

City Attorney 
 

Bargaining Unit: Unrepresented Classifications 

Class Code: 

1034 

CITY OF BERKELEY 

Established Date: Oct 6, 2008 

Revision Date: Oct 6, 2008 January XX, 2024 

SALARY RANGE 

$91.73 - $150.68 Hourly 

$7,338.59 - $12,054.16 Biweekly 

$15,900.28 - $26,117.36 Monthly 

$190,803.39 - $313,408.27 $360,000.00 Annually 

  

 

DESCRIPTION: 

DEFINITION 

 

Under policy direction, acts as the Chief Legal Officer of the City and is responsible for all aspects of 

the City`s legal work, whether performed by professional staff or outside counsel; acts as the legal 

representative for all elected and appointed officials and City departments; performs related work as 

assigned. 

 

CLASS CHARACTERISTICS 

 

This single position class manages all City legal activities, including civil litigation, whether performed 

by in house staff or outside counsel. Responsibilities also include personally handling sensitive and 

complex legal matters and rendering advice and opinions to the City Council, Boards and 

Commissions, the City Manager and others. The incumbent is accountable for accomplishing 

departmental goals and objectives and for furthering City goals and objectives within general policy 

guidelines. 

 

EXAMPLE OF DUTIES: 

The following list of duties is intended only to describe the various types of work that may be 

performed and the level of technical complexity of the assignment(s) and is not intended to be an all-

inclusive list of duties. The omission of a specific duty statement does not exclude it from the position 

if the work is consistent with the concept of the classification, or is similar or closely related to 

another duty statement. 

 

1. Supervises the institution and defense of all litigation involving the City; 

 

2. Responsible for legal advice to all City boards, commissions, the City Council and City 



   
Page 4 of 5 

 

Adjustment to City Attorney Salary Range and Revised Salary December 4, 2023  

                                           

 

departments regarding the legal implications of all City operations; 

 

3. Responsible for evaluating all claims filed against the City and for recommending action on such 

claims; 

 

4. Responsible for reviewing the legal sufficiency of all documents in the City, including ordinances 

and contracts as to form; 

 

5. Develops and directs the implementation of goals, objectives, policies, procedures, budget and 

work standards for the Legal Department; 

 

6. Plans, organizes, administers, reviews and evaluates the activities of professional, support and 

contract staff; selects assigned staff and provides for their training and professional development; 

 

7. Monitors developments, including proposed legislation and court decisions related to municipal law 

and activities, and evaluates their impact upon City operations; 

 

8. Performs related duties as assigned. 

 

KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES: 

Note: The level and scope of the knowledges and skills listed below are related to job duties as 

defined under Class Characteristics. 

 

Knowledge of: 

 

1. Principles and procedures of civil law, especially as they relate to municipal government; 

 

2. Principles, methods, and practices of legal research investigations; 

 

3. Judicial procedures and the rules of evidence; 

 

4. State and federal laws and constitutional provisions affecting municipal operations; 

 

5. Principles and practices of effective employee supervision, including selection, training, work 

evaluation, and discipline. 

 

Skill in: 

 

1. Planning, organizing, administering, reviewing, and evaluating professional and contract staff; 

 

2. Selecting, training, motivating and evaluating departmental staff; 

 

3. Developing, implementing and interpreting goals, objectives, policies, procedures, work standards 

and internal controls; 

 

4. Analyzing, appraising and organizing facts, evidence and precedents concerned in cases; 



   
Page 5 of 5 

 

Adjustment to City Attorney Salary Range and Revised Salary December 4, 2023  

                                           

 

 

5. Making effective court and hearing presentations; 

 

6. Establishing and maintaining effective working relationships with those contacted in the course of 

the work; 

 

7. Representing the City effectively in meetings with others. 

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

A TYPICAL WAY OF GAINING THE KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS OUTLINED ABOVE IS: 

 

Equivalent to graduation from a college or university with an appropriate law degree and eight (8) 

years in the practice of law, of which four (4) years included management and supervision of 

professional staff. Experience in a municipal setting is desirable. 

 

OTHER REQUIREMENTS 

 

Must possess a valid California driver`s license and have a satisfactory driving record. Must be a 

current member of the California State Bar Association. Must be willing to attend evening meetings. 

 



Internal 

   

Page 1 

 
Human Resources 

PERSONNEL BOARD 

December 4, 2023 

 

To:  Members of the Personnel Board 

 

From:  Aram Kouyoumdjian, Director of Human Resources 

 

Subject:  Revise Job Class Specification – Parking Services Manager 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

Revise represented job class specification of Parking Services Manager as outlined. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There will be no fiscal impact as a result of revising the job class specification. 

 

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS 

The current Parking Services Manager job class specification requires Certification as an Administrator of 

Public Parking (CAPP) by the International Parking Institute at time of hire, which was added to the job 

class specification as part of major revisions following the retirement of the last Parking Services 

Manager.  

 

BACKGROUND 

Human Resources has been actively recruiting for the vacant position - posting in industry publications, 

reaching out to certified candidates. While conducting the last two rounds of recruitments, we found that 

many of the candidates possessed the requisite parking services experience, but have not yet attained 

the certification. The recommendation is to make the certification “highly desirable” (as opposed to being 

required at the time of application), which will increase the number of qualified candidates and address 

recruitment issues. 

 

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION 

This job class specification is being revised to address recruitment challenges and increase the number 

of qualified candidates. 

 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED 

None. 

 

CONTACT PERSON 

Aram Kouyoumdjian, Director of Human Resources, (510) 981-6807. 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Proposed Job Class Specification – Parking Services Manager 

2. Brochure - Certification as an Administrator of Public Parking (CAPP) by the International Parking 

Institute 



Internal 
   

Revise Job Class Specification – Parking Services Manager 

  

 

 

Parking Services 
Manager 

 
Bargaining Unit: Public Employees Union, Local 

One 

Class Code: 
1158 

CITY OF BERKELEY 
Established Date: Oct 6, 2008 
Revision Date: Jul 10, 2023 December 4, 2023 

SALARY RANGE 
$55.72 - $67.26 Hourly 

$4,457.76 - $5,380.74 Biweekly 
$9,658.48 - $11,658.28 Monthly 

$115,901.77 - $139,899.34 Annually 

  

 

DESCRIPTION: 

DEFINITION 
 
Under general direction, plans, organizes and administers the parking services programs in the 
Public Works Department, consisting of City off-street and on-street parking management, 
budget, parking fine policy development, metered parking revenue collection and maintenance, 
parking citation level one adjudication, indigent citation payment plans, electric vehicle charging 
program, liaison for parking policy programs and parking enforcement guidelines, special event 
parking coordination, traffic and parking management planning related to event venues of 
varying sizes, and management of major projects and acquisitions; performs related work as 
assigned. 
 
CLASS CHARACTERISTICS 
 
This classification is responsible for the administration and management activities and budget of 
the parking services programs in the Transportation division. This class develops and directs the 
implementation of policy, goals and objectives, and procedures; manages the operation of the 
City's off-street parking facilities, on-street parking meter collection processes and maintenance 
of equipment; fine policy development; and analysis and preparation of reports concerning 
parking operations, revenue, and occupancy. The incumbent represents the Public Works 
Department in meetings with stakeholders, the public and other governmental agencies, and 
makes recommendation for improvements for meeting present and future parking demands. 
This class is distinguished from the Transportation Manager, which has overall management 
responsibility for the Transportation Division of the Public Works Department, which includes 
Traffic Engineering, Transportation Planning, Parking Services, and alternative transportation 
programs. 
 



Internal 
   

Revise Job Class Specification – Parking Services Manager 

  

 

EXAMPLE OF DUTIES: 

The following list of duties is intended only to describe the various types of work that may be 
performed and the level of technical complexity of the assignment(s) and is not intended to be 
an all-inclusive list of duties. The omission of a specific duty statement does not exclude it from 
the position if the work is consistent with the concept of the classification, or is similar or closely 
related to another duty statement. 
 
1. Manages, directs, plans, develops and administers citywide parking operations for the on 
street and off-street parking programs. Daily operations may include programming, strategizing 
and setting program goals, objectives and priorities.  
 
2. Selects, directs, assigns, and evaluates professional and administrative support staff; trains 
staff in work procedures and administers discipline as required; provides professional and 
technical guidance to staff engaged in the management, technical, clerical and maintenance 
activities related to parking operations, maintenance, special event plans and enforcement 
within the City’s parking program. 
 
3. Supervises and performs work related to the preparation and implementation of the division’s 
program and budget;  
 
4. Assigns and directs daily activities, including: controlling the accounting, auditing, collection 
and daily operational procedures relating to the parking facilities; 
 
5. Prepares written reports and statistical analyses, Council reports, Resolutions and 
Ordinances, and requests for proposals; 
 
6. Develops and administers all parking related contracts; regularly inspects facilities to ensure 
conformance with procedures, policies and contracts; 
 
7. Monitors utilization of off-street facilities and on-street meters, forecasts parking revenue for 
on and off-street parking, and recommends new rate structures for off-street facilities and on-
street parking meters; 
 
8. Assists in assessing parking needs and makes recommendations for improvements to meet 
present and future parking needs; makes recommendations concerning parking policies, 
procedures and regulations; 
 
9. Conducts adjudication related to parking citations and appeals; 
 
10. Administers residential parking permit program; 
 
11. Meets with members of the public, citizens' groups and other governmental agencies; and 
 
12. Performs related duties as assigned. 
 

KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES: 



Internal 
   

Revise Job Class Specification – Parking Services Manager 

  

 

Note: The level and scope of the knowledge and skills listed below are related to the job duties 
as defined under Class Characteristics. 
 
Knowledge of: 
 
1. Principles and practices of effective employee supervision including selection, team building, 
training, evaluation, and discipline; 
 
2. Business computer user applications related to the work such as Microsoft Word, Excel, 
Access, PowerPoint, maintenance work order systems, and parking information systems and 
revenue control systems; 
 
3. Principles and practices of budget development and administration; 
 
4. Factors affecting present and future parking needs and methods of data collection to analyze 
parking needs; 
 
5. Methods of collecting, recording, and controlling parking fee revenue, Payment Card Industry 
(PCI) compliance, and auditing principles and practices; 
 
6.    Principles and practices of contracts; 
 
7.    Mobility devices including but not limited to motor/gas vehicles, electric vehicles, and 
scooters; 
 
8.    Meter technology including solar-powered devices and credit card functionality; and 
 
9. Laws and ordinances pertaining to regulation of municipal parking. 
 
Skill in and ability to: 
 
1. Develop and implement programmatic solutions to address customer parking needs and to 
achieve revenue goals; 
 
2. Maintain cooperative working relationships with citizens, contractors, stakeholders and City 
staff; 
 
3. Plan, organize, assign, direct, review and evaluate the work of assigned staff, and develop 
and implement goals and objectives; 
 
4. Analyze, interpret, explain and apply technical policies, procedures, codes, and statutes; 
 
5. Exercise sound independent judgment within established guidelines; 
 
6. Develop and write sound policies and procedures and training staff in their use; 
 
7. Prepare clear, concise, and complete reports, correspondence and other written materials, 
and making clear oral presentations; 
 
8. Prepare, administer and monitor budgets; 
 
9.    Read and interpret construction plans to evaluate and make recommendations related to 



Internal 
   

Revise Job Class Specification – Parking Services Manager 

  

 

parking impacts; and 
 
10.    Adjudicate citations related to parking. 
 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

A TYPICAL WAY OF GAINING THE KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS OUTLINED ABOVE IS: 
Equivalent to graduation from a four-year college with major courses in business administration, 
public administration, or a closely related field, and four (4) years of experience with 
management and supervisory responsibility for revenue collection functions or business facility 
management and development. Progressively responsible related experience may be 
substituted for the college course work on a year-for-year basis. 
 
OTHER REQUIREMENTS: 
Certification as an Administrator of Public Parking (CAPP) by the International Parking Institute 
highly desirable. Must be able to travel to various locations within and outside the City of 
Berkeley to fulfill the job responsibilities.  When driving on City business, the incumbent is 
required to maintain a valid California Class C or higher driver's license as well as a satisfactory 
driving record. 
 

 

CLASSIFICATION HISTORY: 

Established: 1/98 
Revised: 10/07 
Revised: 07/10/202312/04/2023 

 

 



Presented by the CAPP Certification Board of the International Parking & Mobility Institute v. 02, 1/2023

Certification Program

Candidate 
Handbook

International Parking & Mobility Institute | PO Box 3787, Fredericksburg, VA 22402
capp@parking-mobility.org | parking-mobility.org/capp

mailto:capp@parking-mobililty.org


Dear CAPP Applicant:

Welcome and congratulations on considering becoming a CAPP, respected worldwide as the 
leading credential in parking and mobility.

What does it mean to be a CAPP? You need only connect with any industry professional who 
currently holds the credential to know that the CAPP community comprises the very best in 
the profession—mentors, innovators, leaders—who combine talent, skills, expertise, and a 
commitment to share their ideas and experience to advance the profession.

It’s a special group, but not an exclusive one. CAPPs warmly welcome new certificants to the 
fold, expanding what has become a close-knit family of colleagues with whom to network, 
share, learn, and grow.

As you will see in the CAPP Candidate Handbook, the CAPP program is regularly updated 
to reflect advancements in parking and mobility management. These updates ensure that 
we follow best practices in credentialing, and to align the expectations for a CAPP’s body 
of knowledge with IPMI’s groundbreaking Job Analysis Survey. This survey is conducted 
periodically to verify that the CAPP credential reflects the real-world breadth of knowledge 
and skills required of today’s parking and mobility professionals.

Congratulations on taking this first step on the road to becoming a CAPP. All of us at IPMI 
and IPMI’s CAPP Certification Board wish you great success and look forward to sharing the 
journey with you.

Shawn Conrad, CAE
Chief Executive Officer
International Parking and Mobility Institute

International Parking and Mobility Institute CAPP Certification Program
P.O. Box 3787 Fredericksburg, VA 22402

571.699·3011 | capp@parking-mobility.org 
www.parking-mobility.org/capp

The CAPP credential is a program of the International Parking & Mobility Institute (IPMI)  
and is administered through the Independent CAPP Certification Board of IPMI.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 2 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022

mailto:capp@parking-mobility.org


Table of Contents
Communications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .4
Introduction  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .4
Mission Statement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .4
Certification Program . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .4
Becoming a CAPP . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

Eligibility Requirements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
Eligibility Matrix . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
Applying for the Credential . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
Verifying Eligibility Documentation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8
Statement of Understanding . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8
Endorsement  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8
The William M. Voigt, CAPP Scholarship Fund . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .8
Applying for a Scholarship . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

CAPP Code of Ethics  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10
Introduction  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .10
CAPP Code of Ethics  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .10
The Principles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .11
The Rules . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .11
Violation of the Code of Ethics . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .13

Non-Discrimination Statement  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14
Special Accommodations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14
Privacy/Confidentiality Policy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14
Examination Information  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15

Examination Development . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .15
Examination Design, Scoring, and Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .16
Examination Content  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .17
Suggested Study References . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .22
Additional Opportunities for Study . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .23
Examination Registration . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .23
Rescheduling an Examination Registration . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .23
Rescheduling a Missed Examination . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .24
Examination Administration Rules and Regulations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .24

Application Process . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25
Candidate Comments About Examination Questions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .25
Examination Scoring and Reporting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .25
Retesting  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .25
Examination Appeals  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .26

Awarding the Credential  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28
Maintaining the Credential . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28

Recertification Point Matrix . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .28
Status of the Credential . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .30

Fee Schedules . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30
Appendix A—Sample Exam Questions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31
Appendix B—Candidate Application Packet  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35

Application Instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .35

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 3 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Communications
 MAILING ADDRESS: International Parking & Mobility Institute
  Attn: CAPP Certification Program
  P.O. Box 3787
  Fredericksburg, VA 22402
 PHONE: 571-699-3011
 WEB: Parking-mobility.org/professional-development/capp-program
 EMAIL: capp@parking-mobility.org

Introduction
Thank you for your interest in the CAPP Certification Program. The CAPP Certification Program is 
administered by the CAPP Certification Board of the International Parking and Mobility Institute (IPMI).

The CAPP Certification Board is responsible for all aspects of the CAPP credential, as authorized by the 
bylaws of IPMI. IPMI is a nonprofit membership 501(c)(6) trade organization providing services to and 
representing the parking industry since 1962.

The CAPP Candidate Handbook details the process, policies, and procedures supporting the CAPP 
Certification Program. It contains the application, eligibility, and experience requirements; CAPP 
Examination Content Outline; reference recommendations; information about registering for and taking 
the examination; and recertification requirements.

Mission Statement
The certification program is designed to:

 ■ Establish a benchmark of excellence for the parking and mobility profession.
 ■ Provide continual information and training to parking, mobility, and transportation professionals.
 ■ Increase the body of knowledge available to parking and mobility professionals.
 ■ Provide a means by which parking and mobility professionals may demonstrate their proficiency and be 

recognized by their peers, employers, regulators, customers, and the public.

Certification Program
Designation as a CAPP assures stakeholders (employers, regulators, consumers, and the public) that the 
credentialed professional has demonstrated an established level of knowledge that serves as a foundation 
for competent practice as a parking and mobility professional.

The goals of the certification program are to:
 ■ Provide a means for parking and mobility professionals to demonstrate the critical knowledge, skills, 

and abilities necessary to serve the public trust and interest.
 ■ Encourage personal and professional growth.
 ■ Recognize parking and mobility professionals who have demonstrated knowledge and maintain their 

certification through ongoing professional development.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 4 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022

https://login.parking-mobility.org/leadership-and-volunteers
https://www.parking-mobility.org/


Becoming a CAPP
To become a candidate for the CAPP credential, applicants must:

 ■ Document a minimum of three years of management/supervisory experience in parking, mobility, or 
an allied profession (e.g., planning, operations, management, architecture/engineering, construction/
maintenance, service/material supplier, consultant).

 ■ Document the minimum education of a high school diploma.
 ■ Document the minimum of 25 professional development contact hours within the past five years of the 

CAPP application.
 ■ Document the minimum of 50 combined education, experience, and professional development 

eligibility points as they relate to the profession.
 ■ Receive an endorsement from a CAPP or applicant’s employer attesting to the accuracy of education, 

training, and experience claimed on the application.
 ■ Complete the application in its entirety.
 ■ Sign the Statement of Understanding agreeing to abide by the CAPP Code of Ethics, attesting to the 

applicant’s good standing according to the CAPP Code of Ethics, and to the truth of the professional 
experience, education, and professional development documentation.

 ■ Submit the application fee.

Eligibility Requirements
Eligibility is based on three criteria:

 ■ Education.
 ■ Experience.
 ■ Professional development related to the parking and mobility profession. (To determine if professional 

development is related to the parking and mobility profession, please refer to the CAPP Examination 
Content Outline.)

The CAPP Certification Board recognizes that the pathway to the CAPP credential is diverse. Some 
professionals have a wealth of experience managing parking facilities; others come to work in the 
industry based on education or experience in the fields of facility design, urban planning, construction, 
maintenance, traffic management, etc. Still others working in the industry are consultants, vendors, or 
ancillary service providers. Therefore, the minimum requirements in each of the three eligibility areas 
allow applicants to apply various combinations of education, experience, and professional development 
to meet these requirements.

As the CAPP Examination Content Outline  details, the knowledge and tasks required to practice 
competently involve sub-specialties representing many areas of management and operations. To require 
education, professional development, and experience in all sub-specialty fields is impractical. Therefore, 
the minimum requirements in each of the three eligibility areas allow candidates to apply combinations 
of education, experience, and professional development to meet eligibility requirements. Eligibility 
requirements may focus on one area with the understanding that candidates are expected to obtain the 
knowledge, skills, and abilities from other domains.

Applicants should compare their current level of knowledge and understanding to the elements in 
the CAPP Examination Content Outline. Passing the examination ensures that credential holders have 
demonstrated mastery of the full complement of sub-specialty domain knowledge.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 5 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Eligibility Matrix
To be eligible to earn the CAPP credential, applicants must meet minimum education, experience, 
and professional development requirements (totaling 41 points), plus nine additional points from any 
of the three categories, for a total of 50 points. The following matrix outlines point distributions and 
requirements:

1. Education/License/Credential:

Minimum Points: 4/Maximum Points: 40
Note: Points awarded for highest level of education achieved from an accredited educational institution.

 ● High School Diploma or GED (or International Equivalent) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 points
 ● Associate degree (or International Equivalent): . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 points
 ● Bachelor’s Degree (or International Equivalent): . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 points
 ● Master’s Degree:  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 points
 ● Doctorate: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 40 points

 ■ Applicable Professional License: (e.g., engineer, architect, accountancy, construction, etc.):  
8 points per license.*

 ■ Applicable Professional Certification:  (must be aligned with the knowledge and tasks r 
eflected in the CAPP Examination Content Outline): (e.g., project management professional,  
PE, AIA, LEED, etc.): 4 points per designation.*

*Note: Applicant must be in good standing with the licensing agency/credentialing body.

Total Education/Licensing/Credential Points: __________

2. Experience:

Minimum Points: 12 (3 years)/Maximum Points: 40 (10 years)
Note: Professional experience refers to supervisory and/or managerial roles and/or contact with same (e.g., consultants, 
vendors) and/or equivalent experience in a related field. Equivalent experience in a related field must be combined with 
a minimum of three years of experience at any level in the parking, mobility, or transportation industry. No experience 
points are awarded for service in the parking, mobility, or transportation industry below the manager/supervisor level. 
Four points can be claimed for each year of management/supervisory experience up to a maximum of 40 points.

 ■ Examples of applicable job titles include:
 ● Executive Director.
 ● Director of Parking/Transportation/Mobility.
 ● Administrative, Operations, IT, or Financial Manager.
 ● Parking, Transportation, or Mobility Coordinator/Administrator.
 ● Associate/Assistant Director/Manager.
 ● Project Manager.
 ● Consultant/Vendor.
 ● Program Supervisor (Parking, Transport, Enforcement, Security, Mobility).
 ● Contract Manager/Commercial Operator.

 ■ Managerial/Supervisory Parking/Transport Experience:
# years × 4 points per year = Total Managerial/Supervisory Experience points

 ■ Related Managerial/Supervisory Experience + 3 years in Parking, Transportation, or Mobility Industry:
# years x 4 points per year = Total Related Managerial/Supervisory Experience points

Total Experience Points: __________

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 6 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



  

3. Professional Development/Continuing Education:

Minimum Points: 25/No Maximum
Note: Professional development courses must have been completed within the past five years and be applicable to 
the role of the CAPP* (e.g., IPMI webinars, IPMI courses and training, approved State and Regional Association (SRA) 
educational events, other professional development training programs, other professional certificates.) One point is 
awarded per contact hour of professional development/continuing education.

 ■ To determine the applicability of the training, refer to the CAPP Examination Content Outline, which lists 
the knowledge and tasks that form the foundation of the examination.

 ● Professional Development Continuing Education:  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .________
 ● Professional Certificate Award Continuing Education: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .________
 ● Total Points:  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .________

Minimum Number of Eligibility Points Required for CAPP Candidacy: 50

Category Points
 ● Education/License/Credential:  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .________
 ● Experience: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .________
 ● Professional Development:  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .________
 ● Total Points:  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .________

Questions concerning eligibility should be directed to capp@parking-mobility.org.

Applying for the Credential
The application is downloadable from the CAPP website here. Applications must be completed, signed 
and emailed to capp@parking-mobility.org. Applications will not be accepted without documentation of 
all three areas of education, professional development, and experience. Endorsements must be received 
via email (capp@parking-mobility.org) independent of the application.

The application fee is $475 (IPMI members) or $700 (IPMI non-members) U.S., which includes a non- 
refundable $100 administrative processing fee. Additional testing fees may apply outside the U.S.

Applicants are responsible for notifying IPMI staff in writing of any change of name, address, or contact 
information.

The application contains a checklist of requirements you can use to determine if you have the minimum 
eligibility requirements. Applications will be processed within 20 days of receipt. If an application is 
approved, applicants will receive emailed instructions concerning examination registration procedures 
and testing options.

Applicants submitting incomplete applications will be notified in writing of deficiencies and provided 30 
days to produce the missing documentation. If the application is not completed within the 30-day window, 
applicant will be notified via email that the application has been denied. 

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 7 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022

mailto:capp@parking-mobility.org
https://www.parking.org/professional-development/capp-program/
mailto:capp%40parking-mobility.org?subject=
mailto:capp@parking-mobility.org


Verifying Eligibility Documentation
The CAPP Certification Board and/or CAPP Certification Program staff reserve the right to audit/verify 
the experience, education, and professional development provided by the applicant. This may be 
accomplished by a phone interview with a supervising professional or employers or through verification of 
education/professional development transcripts, certificates, and/or licenses. Additional documentation 
may be requested to support the information provided by the applicant.

Statement of Understanding
Applicants are required to attest to the accuracy of the application and to agree to abide by the CAPP Code 
of Ethics. Any misrepresentation or misconduct related to the application or examination may result in 
disqualification or revocation of certification. By applying for the credential, applicants agree to the terms 
set forth in the application and CAPP Candidate Handbook.

Endorsement
All applicants must obtain an endorsement from an appropriately certified individual or employment 
supervisor who is willing to attest to the applicant’s assertions regarding professional experience and 
confirm that the applicant is in good standing within the profession. If a CAPP is not available, another 
qualified professional with knowledge of the CAPP certification or an employment supervisor may 
validate/endorse the applicant’s claim of professional experience and professional standing. The 
endorsement must be submitted independent of the application.

The William M. Voigt, CAPP Scholarship Fund
The William M. Voigt, CAPP Scholarship Fund was established in 1997 to benefit CAPP applicants in need of 
financial support to earn the credential. The scholarship fund is designed to provide financial assistance 
to support applicants’ efforts to achieve and maintain the CAPP credential. The CAPP Certification Board 
offers scholarship awards based on:

 ■ Scholarships are available to offset the cost of registration fees and travel and lodging expenses related 
to earning and maintaining the CAPP credential.

 ■ If requesting assistance for professional development to support an application, applicants must 
demonstrate progress toward the required 50 eligibility points.

 ■ If requesting assistance toward recertification requirements, a CAPP must demonstrate that he or 
she has accumulated a minimum of 6 recertification points supporting the three-year, 20- point 
requirement.

 ■ There is a lifetime award limit of $2,500 per applicant.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 8 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022

http://The William M. Voigt, CAPP Scholarship Fund


Applying for a Scholarship
Scholarship application forms are downloadable here. All information included on the scholarship 
application is kept confidential and secure in accordance with the IPMI privacy policy. Scholarships are 
provided to individuals needing to attend in-person training and/or professional development courses per 
the scholarship guidelines. Applications are accepted year-round but must be submitted at least six weeks 
prior to the event. Award decisions are made within 30 days of application. Questions concerning the 
scholarship program should be directed to capp@parking-mobility.org.

CAPP Chats 

IPMI hosts multiple free Member Chats on many topics, including CAPP. Register for free chats to find 
out what you need to know to pursue CAPP, and engage with members of the CAPP Board, current and 
prospective CAPPs, and staff to answer questions and share insights on the program, resources, and 
benefits.

CAPP Track 

CAPP Track is a new free program for all who want to learn more about CAPP. No matter where you 
are in your career—from the seasoned professional to those just beginning their careers in parking, 
transportation, and mobility—CAPP Track offers resources to assist with your path to certification.  
When you sign up for CAPP Track:

 ■ It alerts IPMI to your interest in pursuing CAPP in the next few years, so we can offer you tailored 
activities and events to help you plan your path to CAPP.

 ■ We will send periodic updates on the CAPP Program, requirements, events, and resources. These will do 
two things: help you earn CAPP points toward your application and share knowledge and information 
you’ll need to know.

 ■ We will share information on eligibility requirements so you can formally submit your application 
successfully. CAPP Track is designed to help you prepare to submit your CAPP application when you are 
ready! 

 ■ Look for the CAPP Track logo. You’ll see the logo in our communications next to events, 
articles, courses, and content that advance your path towards CAPP. CAPP point activities 
will be clearly marked.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 9 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022

https://www.parking-mobility.org/professional-development/capp-program/
mailto:capp@parking-mobility.org
https://login.parking-mobility.org/events/free-member-chats
https://login.parking-mobility.org/products/capp-track


CAPP Code of Ethics
Introduction

The CAPP Certification Board has adopted a Code of Ethics and Professional Responsibility (Code of 
Ethics) which establishes the expected level of professional conduct and practice for CAPP designees. The 
CAPP Certification Board retains the right to amend the Code of Ethics as required.

To promote and maintain the integrity of its CAPP certification for the benefit of credential holders and 
stakeholders, the CAPP Certification Board has the ability to enforce the provisions of the Code of Ethics. 
The CAPP Certification Board shall be required to enforce sanctions against CAPPs who violate the 
regulations as written in the Code of Ethics. The CAPP Certification Board will follow the disciplinary rules 
and procedures set forth below when enforcing the Code of Ethics.

CAPP Code of Ethics
The CAPP Certification Board is the sole body authorized to award the CAPP designation. The CAPP 
designation is widely recognized and bestows a recognized level of competence in the field of professional 
parking management. Part of that competence relates to an understanding that CAPPs will abide by the 
Code of Ethics, thereby protecting the public they are called to serve. The purpose of this Code is to direct 
CAPPs to conduct themselves with competency, honesty, professionalism, integrity and fairness, and to 
provide a benchmark code of conduct that stakeholders may expect.

To this end, the CAPP Certification Board hereby establishes this Code of Ethics stating that all CAPPs are 
bound to:

 ■ Conduct their businesses according to high standards of honesty and fairness and to render that service 
to customers so that any “prudent person” would agree that the CAPPs conduct themselves and their 
businesses in a manner that is beyond reproach.

 ■ Provide competent, “customer-centric” service that serves all stakeholders, and specifically protects the 
public.

 ■ Abide by all applicable governing rules, regulations and standards.

The Code consists of two parts: The Principles and The Rules. The Principles embody the ethical and 
professional standards expected of CAPPs. These principles address the “substance” and not merely the 
“form” of service to customers and employers. The principles are the guidelines of professional conduct, 
the same conduct that any customer would expect of any professional on whom they rely. The rules serve 
as a description of best-practice or CAPP standards and outline how the principles must be implemented 
in specific circumstances.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 10 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022

https://www.parking-mobility.org/2022/11/23/capp-code-of-ethics-2/


The Principles
Principle 1. Competence

The CAPP shall provide services to stakeholders in a manner that demonstrates competency. Competency 
must be maintained through participation in recertification activities that demonstrate the CAPP has 
maintained currency in the necessary knowledge, skills and abilities required in the role of the CAPP.

Competence is defined as having adequate levels of knowledge and skill to provide appropriate service 
in the parking profession as judged by one’s peers. Competence includes the recognition that when one 
is involved in matters beyond one’s competence, one must withdraw or seek appropriate professional 
assistance. Competence also includes maintaining one’s level of knowledge through continuing 
education/recertification.

Principle 2. Confidentiality

A CAPP shall not disclose any confidential customer information without the specific written consent of 
the customer unless the disclosure is made in response to a legal proceeding, to defend against charges 
of wrongdoing by the CAPP or in connection with a civil dispute between the CAPP and a claimant. 
Confidentiality is a fundamental aspect of trust on which the professional customer relationship is based.

Principle 3. Professionalism

A CAPP’s conduct in all matters shall reflect professionalism and good character, as expected by the CAPP 
designation. A CAPP represents the credential and may not behave in any manner that would discredit the 
credential.

Principle 4. Fairness and Integrity

A CAPP shall perform professional services in a manner that is fair and reasonable to customers, 
prospective customers, colleagues, employers, and regulators, and shall disclose any conflicts of interest 
associated with service as a CAPP. Fairness includes subordinating one’s own personal interest when it 
conflicts with the stakeholder’s interests and when such conflicts are unclear, attempting to balance the 
interests of all parties equitably. The CAPP must demonstrate integrity by living according to high moral 
CAPP Code of Ethics principles, and serving the public with steadfast adherence to the CAPP Code of Ethics 
Rules and Principles, and the policies and procedures of the CAPP Certification Board.

The Rules
Rules that Relate to Principle I: Competence

Rule 101: CAPPs shall keep informed of developments in the profession and participate in continuing 
education throughout their professional careers in order to improve professional competence in all fields 
in which the designee is involved. CAPPs shall satisfy all minimum continuing education requirements 
established by the CAPP Certification Board.

Rule 102: CAPPs shall provide service and expertise only in those areas where they have competence. In 
those areas that the CAPP is not professionally competent, the CAPP shall seek the counsel of qualified 
individuals and/or refer stakeholders to such persons or withdraw from providing service or expertise.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 11 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Rules that Relate to Principle II: Confidentiality

Rule 201: A CAPP shall not reveal or use, without the customer’s written consent, any personally 
identifiable information relating to the customer except and to the extent that disclosure or use is 
reasonably necessary to:

a. Comply with legal requirements or legal process; or
b. Defend the CAPP against charges of wrongdoing; or
c. Defend the CAPP in connection with a civil dispute between the CAPP and the customer.

Rule 202: A CAPP shall maintain the same standards of confidentiality to employers and employees as to 
customers.

Rules that Relate to Principle III: Professionalism

Rule 301: A CAPP shall use the designation in compliance with the current rules and regulations of the 
CAPP Certification Board, as established and amended.

Rule 302: A CAPP shall show respect for other professionals and related occupational groups by engaging 
in fair and honorable competitive practices.

Rule 303: A CAPP who has knowledge that another CAPP has committed a violation of this Code shall 
promptly notify the CAPP Appeals and Discipline Committee. A violation would be any act that raises 
substantial questions as to another CAPP’s honesty, integrity, competence, trustworthiness or fitness to 
practice. For the purposes of this Rule, knowledge means no substantial doubt.

Rule 304: A CAPP who has knowledge that raises a substantial question of legally actionable, 
unprofessional, fraudulent or illegal conduct by a CAPP shall promptly inform the appropriate regulatory 
body if appropriate, as well as the CAPP Appeals and Discipline Committee. For purposes of this Rule, 
knowledge means no substantial doubt.

Rule 305: A CAPP who has reason to suspect illegal conduct within the designee’s organization shall make 
timely disclosure of the available evidence to the designee’s immediate supervisor and/or partners or 
co-owners. If the CAPP is convinced that illegal conduct exists within the designee’s organization, and that 
appropriate measures are not being taken to remedy the problem, the CAPP shall, where appropriate, 
alert the proper regulatory authorities, and the CAPP Certification Board.

Rule 306: In all professional activities, a CAPP shall perform services in accordance with:
a. Applicable laws, rules and regulations of governmental and other applicable authorities; and
b. Applicable rules, regulations and other established policies of the CAPP Certification Board.

Rule 307: CAPPs shall not engage in any conduct that reflects adversely on their integrity or fitness to 
practice.

Rule 308: A CAPP shall always act in the best interest of the customer and/or stakeholders, serving the 
overarching requirement to protect the public.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 12 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Rules that Relate to Principle IV: Fairness and Integrity

Rule 401: A CAPP shall, in rendering services, disclose all material information relevant to the professional 
relationship, including but not limited to conflict(s) of interest(s), changes in the CAPP’s employment 
affiliation, address, telephone number, credentials, and qualifications.

Rule 402: A CAPP who is an employee shall perform professional services with dedication to the lawful 
objectives of the employer and in accordance with this Code.

Rule 403: A CAPP shall not, during the course of rendering professional services, engage in conduct 
that involves dishonesty, fraud, deceit or misrepresentation, or knowingly make a false or misleading 
statement to a customer, employer, CAPP Code of Ethics (cont.) employee, professional colleague, 
governmental or other regulatory body or official, or any other person or entity.

Rule 404: A CAPP is prohibited from the unauthorized or misleading use of the CAPP credential. If the 
CAPP’s renewal date has passed and the CAPP has not fulfilled requirements to maintain certification, the 
CAPP designation may not be used until the CAPP meets all requirements and pays all outstanding fees 
and fines. Additionally, CAPPs are prohibited from using the CAPP designation to represent themselves as 
specialists in a particular product or service, as having specific knowledge that they do not possess or from 
using the designation in any way to mislead stakeholders about their expertise or breadth of experience or 
knowledge.

Rule 405: A CAPP shall conduct him/herself with honor and dignity.

Rule 406: A CAPP shall not discriminate against others based on, but not limited to, gender, race, age, 
religion, disability, nationality, or sexual orientation.

Violation of the Code of Ethics
CAPPs who violate the Code of Ethics shall be subject to disciplinary actions. The Disciplinary Policy and 
Procedures may be found on the CAPP portion of the IPMI website.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 13 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Non-Discrimination Statement
The CAPP Certification Board will admit applicants regardless of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, religion, 
ethnicity, national origin, disability, or marital status and provide all rights and privileges, as well as open 
access to programs, examinations, and certification.

Special Accommodations
The CAPP Certification Board grants reasonable accommodations for candidates with documented 
disabilities in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. If special assistance or arrangements 
are required, the following protocol must be followed:

 ■ Applicants must make a request for accommodations in writing when the application is submitted. This 
request must include a complete description of the requested accommodation.

 ■ Documentation of the disability, as diagnosed by a qualified health care professional, must accompany 
the accommodation request.

Applicants requesting accommodations may be contacted by Certification Program staff to discuss 
the disability and requested accommodation. Every effort will be made to provide a reasonable 
accommodation within the constraints of consideration of examination security and administration 
guidelines. Applicants will be notified in writing of accommodations that can be offered.

Privacy/Confidentiality Policy
The CAPP Certification Board abides by IPMI’s strict privacy/confidentiality policy, demonstrating its 
firm commitment to applicant, candidate, and certificant privacy. The policy applies to all aspects of the 
credential, including the secure handling and storage of application materials, examinations, scores, 
and candidate and certificant records. IPMI’s Certification Program staff are required to complete a 
confidentiality/non-disclosure document agreeing to protect the privacy of applicants, candidates, and 
certificants. 

The CAPP Certification Board’s policy is that applicants protected by non-disclosure, candidate, and 
certificant information (i.e., protected information) may not be released to or shared with:

 ■ Any member of the public, unless there is applicable statutory exception or written release from the 
applicant, candidate, or certificant.

 ■ Any member of the CAPP Certification Board, unless the recipient has a legitimate interest for the use of 
that protected information to perform a service or carry out a responsibility within that person’s scope 
of employment or engagement as a public official.

Certification Program staff with access to protected information are expected to safeguard that information 
from unauthorized disclosure. This includes, as appropriate:

 ■ Computer systems and applications security: central processing units, peripherals, portable storage 
devices, operating systems, applications software, and data.

 ■ Physical security: The premises occupied by CAPP and/or the IPMI personnel or contractors using 
computer equipment storing or having access to protected information.

 ■ Operational security: Environmental control, power equipment, and operational activities related to 
operations.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 14 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



 ■ Procedural security: Established and documented security processes for information technology staff, 
vendors, management, and individual users of protected information.

 ■ Network security: Communications equipment, transmission paths, switches, terminals, and adjacent 
areas.

IPMI and the CAPP Certification Board reserve the right to change this policy at any time by notifying users 
of the adoption of a new privacy statement.

Examination Information
Examination Development

The content validity (relevance), fairness, and accuracy of the CAPP examination are assured. The CAPP 
Certification Board, working with experts in the field of certification program management, mandates that 
the examination development, administration, scoring, and reporting adhere to international professional 
certification standards and guidelines establishing assessment and certification best practices. The most 
important of these standards are promulgated by such key organizations as the National Commission for 
Certifying Agencies (NCCA), ISO/American National Standards Institute (ANSI) 17024 Standards, American 
Psychological Association (APA), and Council on Licensure, Enforcement and Regulation (CLEAR). This 
body of standards provides a means for ensuring that the assessment and credentialing process is a fair 
measure of competence and knowledge and is legally defensible.

The CAPP Examination Content Outline is based on the 2018 Parking and Mobility Professionals Job 
Analysis Study. This full-scale survey study will be revalidated periodically and used a methodology 
inviting parking and mobility professionals and current CAPPs to participate. The research was performed 
by a certification industry exam development subject matter expert (SME) (or psychometrician) and 
involved a panel of parking and mobility professionals/SMEs representing the full complement of diversity 
in the industry. It documents the link between the content of the examination and practice on the job.

The passing score for the examination was determined using the Angoff, Design V. Psychometric 
procedures are used to score the examinations in compliance with relevant technical guidelines. IPMI 
reports scores using a scaled score model in which raw scores are placed on a 0-100 scale with 70 
reported as the passing score. Using scaled scores is a common psychometric practice employed on many 
examinations, including the SAT, ACT, and CPA examinations.

Ongoing question writing, question review, and examination and question analyses are conducted to 
ensure that the validity, reliability, and other psychometric characteristics of the examinations conform to 
standards. New questions written by SMEs are reviewed multiple times, verified to an approved reference, 
and linked to the CAPP Examination Content Outline. All questions undergo statistical review to ensure 
they perform properly. These activities are overseen by professional test development and psychometric 
staff, as contracted by the CAPP Certification Board. The Board is confident the validity of the exam 
content, the reliability of the test instruments, and the measurement processes employed to analyze, 
score, and establish the reporting passing scores are of the highest caliber.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 15 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Examination Design, Scoring, and Reporting
The examination has 165 questions: 150 live (scored) and 15 pretest (not scored) four-option, multiple- 
choice questions, administered using computer-based technology. Candidates may take up to three hours 
to complete the exam. Each multiple-choice question has four answer choices; only one answer choice is 
correct. It is a closed-book examination. Candidates always have access to an on-screen calculator during 
the examination and are provided with scratch paper that will be collected after the test administration. 
Candidates are encouraged to read the questions carefully and choose the best response, first answering 
the questions they are sure of and returning to the more difficult questions as time allows. Credit is given 
only for questions that candidates have answered.

Questions left blank will be scored as incorrect. Therefore, there is no penalty for guessing.

At the end of a testing session, a computer-generated score report will be issued.* This score is provisional, 
pending statistical verification that will take place within 72 hours. If candidates do not hear from the 
Certification Department within that time, they may assume the score stands as reported.

Candidates passing the examination will not receive a scaled score. Failing candidates will receive a scaled 
score along with a diagnostic report indicating the percent of questions answered correctly in each of the 
representative domains.

*At times during the examination development cycle, candidate scores may be withheld pending further psychometric 
analysis. Withheld scores will be released within approximately 60 days of the test administration date.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 16 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Examination Content
As described, the CAPP Examination Content Outline is based upon the 2018 Parking and Mobility 
Professionals Job Analysis Study and is divided into six domains. The complete CAPP Examination Content 
Outline follows.

CAPP Examination Content Outline
Domain I: General Management
(22 percent of exam)

A. Demonstrate knowledge of the following management practices and techniques:
1. Management structure and teams
2. Internal communications
3. Business and strategic plan
4. Performance measures
5. Budgeting
6. Hardware and software interoperability
7. Electronic data security (e.g., encryption, data storage, backup, PCI compliance)
8. Customer service policies
9. Project/operations management
10. Risk management, including:

a. Business practices/liability exposure (e.g., insurance, permits, licenses)
b. Financial markets/economy
c. Revenue/inventory/asset control auditing
d. Facility maintenance
e. Data management, data security, remediation
f. Safety and security (e.g., security patrol, emergency phones, cameras, suicide prevention)
g. Emergency procedures (e.g., power/system outages, disaster)

B. Manage revenue sources, cash flow, and/or allocation of resources

C. Analyze, propose, and/or determine aspects of revenue control solutions, including:
1. Researching and matching various systems options to customer usage patterns
2. Performing a cost-benefit analysis on different systems; selecting system(s)
3. Financing and contracting system purchase and installation

D. Determine, recommend, and/or employ business-partner relationships and alliances including:
1. Government and quasi-government
2. Administrative services providers (e.g., bookkeeping, banking, insurance, recordkeeping)
3. Professional service providers (e.g., architects, engineers, attorneys, consultants)
4. Facilities and operational services providers

E. Evaluate, review, and/or select policies and procedures

F. Examine and/or select transportation demand management (TDM) plans, including:
1. Programming by mode-split (e.g., bike, carpools, transit)
2. Coordinating TDM and transit with parking management
3. Marketing to and educating stakeholders
4. Assessing and measuring the effectiveness of the program/strategies

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 17 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



G. Recognize organizational human resources practices regarding:
1. Writing and updating employee job descriptions based on required skills and responsibilities
2. Recruiting staff
3. Setting staffing levels, organizational structure, performance goals, scheduling, and succession 

planning
4. Performing staff internal and external training (e.g., safety, benefits)
5. Identifying and complying with organized workers’ associations (e.g., unions, collective 

bargaining agreements)
6. Applying management/leadership principles
7. Establishing, applying, monitoring, and/or enforcing:

a. A code of ethics
b. Policies and procedures
c. Incentive programs and retention

8. Develop and monitor performance metrics for unambiguous evaluation
9. Providing a safe and secure work environment by:

a. Applying government workplace standards
b. Posting applicable employee safety and rights information and hazardous materials data 

sheets
c. Providing protection from workplace injury, hazards, the elements, and crime

Domain II: Project Management
(15 percent of exam)

A. Identify/recognize the variables and considerations of facility design (surface and structure) including:
1. Functional design
2. Operational considerations (e.g., safety and security, automated)
3. Financial feasibility
4. Site considerations, location, climate, and local architecture
5. Maintenance considerations
6. Relevant government requirements (e.g., disability, environmental building codes)

B. Recognize the components to sustainability

C. Explain the variables and considerations of procurement practices including:
1. Research and due diligence (e.g., test, pilot, systems, demo, site visits)
2. Big process (e.g., request for proposal/information/qualifications, selection process)
3. Implementation

D. Recognize and/or compare financial options new or capital renewal (e.g., types and purposes, bond 
indenture and debt service obligations, mortgages)

Domain III: Financial and Operational Auditing
(16 percent of exam)

A. Perform strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats (SWOT) analyses

B. Develop and evaluates performance metrics

C. Perform internal financial audits

D. Commission and/or assist external auditors

E. Prepare for/assists in unscheduled outside regulatory compliance audits

F. Create/implement management plans to address audit findings

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 18 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Domain IV: Operations Management
(21 Percent of exam)

A. Apply operations management based on:
1. Industry segments (e.g., airport, municipal, university, hospital, commercial operators)
2. Number of spaces, ingress/egress lanes, and demand cycles
3. Prepare standard operating procedures including:

a. On-street
b. Off-street (e.g., multi-use garage)
c. Valet
d. Multi-modal (e.g., bikes, ped., TNC)
e. Fleet management
f. Buses and shuttles
g. Events

4. Integration of technology (e.g., parking guidance systems, handheld equipment, LPR)
5. Employ peak demand/utilization strategies

B. Manage the revenue control system(s) by:
1. Managing the installation of system hardware and software
2. Training staff and ensuring customers can use the system
3. Managing, supervising, auditing, and reporting on performance, security, and revenue
4. Determining maintenance and revenue collection schedules

C. Determine and follow a maintenance program schedule by:
1. Conducting regularly scheduled inspections to identify maintenance requirements for facility:

a. Structure (e.g., corrosion, spalling, delamination, oxidization, cracking, leaks)
b. Equipment (e.g., elevators, fencing, lighting, signage, revenue)
c. Aesthetics (e.g., painting, landscaping, cleaning)

2. Identifying, analyzing, and prioritizing long-term, short-term, and preventive maintenance 
projects

3. Implementing cost-saving measures, including energy-efficient equipment upgrades
4. Ensuring continuity of services
5. Performing in-house or subcontracted maintenance/repairs:

a. Structural (e.g., concrete, beams, coatings, sealants)
b. Equipment (e.g., elevators, fencing, lighting, signage)
c. Aesthetics (e.g., painting, landscaping, cleaning, sweeping)
d. Geographical weather mitigation (e.g., snow/ice removal as applicable, floods, sandstorm)

6. Conducting quality control maintenance performance inspections

D. Manage parking system revenue controls by:
1. Establishing internal revenue controls by:

a. Eliminating staff conflicts of interest
b. Segregating duties
c. Managing bank-facility relationship (e.g., financial flows within your organization, managing 

revenue processing relationships)
2. Responding to unexpected findings in revenue and inventory audits
3. Keeping inventory records, redundant systems, and performing audits
4. Using active and passive monitoring systems

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 19 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



E. Establish and supervise the parking system enforcement policy, including:
1. Purpose of enforcement (e.g., safety, vehicle turnover requirements)
2. Personnel training
3. Enforcement practices (e.g., warning, citations, booting, towing, impounding, LPR)
4. Adjudication and appeals
5. Fine collections (e.g., lookups, notices, third-party collections)

F. Manage day-to-day financial operations, including:
1. Creating and assessing fee structures and revenue collection procedures based on evaluation of:

a. Utilization and occupancy studies
b. Types of fees (e.g., permit, hourly, daily, weekly, event)
c. Rate schedules (e.g., time of day, special events, overnight, long-term, and lost tickets)
d. Fee payment options
e. Market rate survey comparisons
f. Budget variances
g. Pricing strategies (e.g., dynamic, progressive)

2. Managing revenue by performing:
a. Daily reconciliation by method of payment
b. Monthly access card/permit audits comparing active vs. paid
c. Scheduled and unscheduled internal auditing of revenue (e.g., surprise equipment and 

vehicle inventories, audit of payroll deduction records)
d. Execution of audit findings

3. Managing expenses including:
a. Comparison of orders-to-invoice-to-inventory
b. Comparison of contract to payments (e.g., accounts payable)
c. Staff salaries and/or expenses
d. Taxes and fees where applicable
e. Changes to purchase patterns (e.g., gas purchase doubled in one month)

4. Evaluate internal operational policies to assess potential improvements:
a. Cash and credit transaction processing procedures
b. Data security for credit transactions
c. Stakeholder satisfaction
d. Safety and security
e. Emergency preparedness
f. Staffing requirements
g. Maintenance goals and requirements
h. Energy consumption

G. Create and implement an emergency management/disaster preparedness program including 
responses to and safeguards for:

1. Natural and/or man-made disasters/incidents
2. Data and information protection (e.g., computer system backups, off-site data storage, off-site 

monitoring)
3. Equipment and asset protection

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 20 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Domain V: Marketing and Public Relations
(10 percent of exam)

A. Establish and/or implement an external communications policy and protocol to communicate with 
stakeholders

B. Share the details of emergency/disaster response(s) with stakeholders

C. Identify and market services based on stakeholder and service profiles, competitors, and feedback

D. Communicate organizational mission and service expectations to stakeholders

E. Practice community involvement/engagement

F. Integrate marketing tools to increase market share and improve brand (e.g., external wayfinding, 
focus groups, customer survey, newsletter, social media, website, online search optimization, email 
marketing)

G. Develop and implement customer retention and satisfaction programs (e.g., jump starts, flat tires, 
lights left on, lost cars)

Domain VI: Analysis and Application of Technology
(16 percent of exam)

A. Analyze, manage, and/or apply parking management solutions (e.g., PARCS, ALPR, RFID, robotic 
systems, parking guidance systems, event parking solutions)

B. Analyze, manage, and/or employ enforcement applications (e.g., citation management, LPR, 
enforcement handhelds, plate lookups, online appeals/payments)

C. Examine and propose payment processing and applications (e.g., credit card processing, PCI 
compliance, online payments, cybersecurity, cashiering systems, payment apps)

D. Evaluate and recommend smartphone technology (e.g., payment/reservation apps, near-field 
communications, QR code, parking availability, trip planning)

E. Evaluate and/or employ real-time communications (e.g., GPS, parking availability, sensors, APIs, bus 
schedules/arrivals)

F. Evaluate and/or employ sustainable technologies (e.g., EV charging stations, smart lighting, solar 
panels, ride-sharing, bicycle-sharing, car-sharing)

G. Manage data collection, reporting and analytics (e.g., cloud-based data, parking utilizations, 
predictive parking algorithms, demand-based pricing recommendations)

H. Review and evaluate emerging technologies (e.g., autonomous vehicles, mobility-as-a-service, 
(MaaS), smart cities)

Appendix A contains sample questions.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 21 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Suggested Study References
The CAPP Certification Board provides a suggested reference list as a resource that may be useful to 
candidates as they study for the exam. This list is not intended to be all-inclusive, but reflects references 
used to support the test development process.

Candidates are encouraged to review resources and information in all content areas. The CAPP 
Certification Board does not endorse any text or author.

The CAPP Certification Board does not recommend candidates memorize all suggested references.

The exam questions are written based on the knowledge and tasks identified in the CAPP Examination 
Content Outline.

Note: Using the references does not guarantee successful performance on the examination.

Parking-Related Texts
 ■ A Guide to Parking, International Parking & Mobility Institute
 ■ Sustainable Parking Design & Management: A Practitioners Handbook, International Parking & Mobility 

Institute
 ■ The Technology Glossary for Parking Professionals (First edition 2017), International Parking & Mobility 

Institute and the British Parking Association
 ■ Parksmart Certification Standard, Version 1.0 with Addenda, Green Business Certification Inc.
 ■ The Dimensions of Parking, (5th Edition, 2010) Urban Land Institute, National Parking Institute
 ■ The High Cost of Free Parking, (Edition June 2011) Shoup, Donald C., APA Planners Press
 ■ Parking Structures: Planning, Design, Construction, Maintenance and Repair, (Third edition)
 ■ Parking Management Best Practices, (Second edition March 2006) Litman, Todd, APA Planners Press
 ■ Guide to the Project Management Body of Knowledge PMBOK Guide® 6th Edition PDF eTextbook  

ISBN: 978-1628251845 Publication Date: 2017 Author: Project Management Institute (PMI) Procurement 
Chapter

Regulations/Processes
 ■ The Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
 ■ The Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 
 ■ Emergency Services Sector Cybersecurity Initiative, Cybersecurity & Infrastructure Security Agency
 ■ Preparedness Checklists and Toolkits, Ready.gov
 ■ Emergency Preparedness Manual, International Parking & Mobility Institute
 ■ PCI Compliance Guide for eCommerce 
 ■ OSHA Guide Hazard Communication Standard Safety Data Sheets
 ■ Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration CDL program Overview 
 ■ Fair Labor Standards Act
 ■ ADA Regulations
 ■ Omnibus Transportation Act of 1991 
 ■ FEMA Training IS 700 An Introduction to National Incident Management System
 ■ Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA)

Ancillary Resources
 ■ Management: Leading and Collaborating in a Competitive World, (12th edition, January 2012) Bateman 

and McGraw-Hill/Irwin; 10th edition (2016)
 ■ Please Understand Me, David Keirsey and Marilyn Bates, Prometheus Nemesis Book Company, 1984

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 22 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022

https://www.parking-mobility.org/2020/03/25/a-guide-to-parking-2/
http://www.amazon.com/Dimensions-Parking-Urban-Land-Institute/dp/0874201209/ref%3Dsr_1_1?s=books&ie=UTF8&qid=1395781342&sr=1-1&keywords=the%2Bdimensions%2Bof%2Bparking%2Burban%2Bland%2Binstitute
http://www.amazon.com/Dimensions-Parking-Urban-Land-Institute/dp/0874201209/ref%3Dsr_1_1?s=books&ie=UTF8&qid=1395781342&sr=1-1&keywords=the%2Bdimensions%2Bof%2Bparking%2Burban%2Bland%2Binstitute
https://www.accounting.com/resources/gaap/#%3A~%3Atext%3DGenerally%20accepted%20accounting%20principles%2C%20or%2Capproved%20accounting%20methods%20and%20practices
https://us.aicpa.org/content/dam/aicpa/research/standards/auditattest/downloadabledocuments/au-00150.pdf
https://www.cisa.gov/emergency-services-sector-cybersecurity-initiative
https://www.fema.gov/preparedness-checklists-toolkits
https://www.parking-mobility.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/03/IPMI-Emergency-Preparedness-Manual.pdf
https://www.redshelf.com/app/ecom/book/1646459/pci-compliance-a-complete-guide-2021-edition-1646459-9781867468189-gerardus-blokdyk
https://www.osha.gov/sites/default/files/publications/OSHA3514.pdf
https://www.fmcsa.dot.gov/registration/commercial-drivers-license
https://www.dol.gov/sites/dolgov/files/WHD/legacy/files/FairLaborStandAct.pdf
https://beta.ada.gov/law-and-regs/ada/
https://www.transportation.gov/odapc/omnibus-transportation-employee-testing-act-1991
https://training.fema.gov/is/courseoverview.aspx?code=IS-700.b&lang=en
https://www.transportation.gov/mission/health/High-Occupancy-Vehicle-Lanes
https://www.amazon.com/Leadership-Challenge-Extraordinary-Things-Organizations/dp/1119278961/ref%3Dsr_1_1?ie=UTF8&qid=1547139420&sr=8-1&keywords=the%2Bleadership%2Bchallenge%2B6th%2Bedition
https://www.chegg.com/textbooks/management-12th-edition-9781259546945-1259546942?c_id=sem&utm_source=google&utm_medium=cpc&utm_campaign=tb--long_tail-campaign_shoppingpmax&utm_content=&gclid=CjwKCAjwmJeYBhAwEiwAXlg0AXc_n8HaCA_WEGu3F-OsIW8sLN046-yC_LdImDMeh9PEPY4AJZQpDBoC7yIQAvD_BwE&gclsrc=aw.ds
https://www.amazon.com/Please-Understand-Me-Character-Temperament/dp/0960695400/ref%3Dasc_df_0960695400/?tag=hyprod-20&linkCode=df0&hvadid=312150641898&hvpos=1o1&hvnetw=g&hvrand=9998529281791970814&hvpone&hvptwo&hvqmt&hvdev=c&hvdvcmdl&hvlocint&hvlocphy=9053112&hvtargid=pla-625526303952&psc=1&tag&ref&adgrpid=62860525180&hvpone&hvptwo&hvadid=312150641898&hvpos=1o1&hvnetw=g&hvrand=9998529281791970814&hvqmt&hvdev=c&hvdvcmdl&hvlocint&hvlocphy=9053112&hvtargid=pla-625526303952


Additional Opportunities for Study
IPMI offers single- and multi-day training seminars and workshops independent of the CAPP Certification 
Board. 

Opportunities to earn CAPP points and education related to the credential include: 
 ■ IPMI’s Annual series of webinars, offering 1 CAPP point each
 ■ IPMI’s Instructor-Led Trainings, offering the following courses and point values:

 ● Accredited Parking Organization (APO) Trainings, 2 or 4 CAPP Points
 ● Current, relevant, and specific courses to be updated annually.
 ● Parksmart Advisor Training, 9 CAPP Points, 9 GBCI CEs, and .9 CEUs

 ■ IPMI’s On-demand Courses, covering comprehensive topics in IPMI’s online library, featuring individual 
courses and certificate programs

 ■ Attending education sessions at IPMI’s Annual Parking & Mobility Conference & Expo 
 ■ IPMI’s Conference Courses offered in conjunction with the annual Parking & Mobility Conference & Expo
 ■ Approved State and Regional Association education offered by IPMI affiliates

Please note that the CAPP Certification Board provides neither training nor educational materials, 
and candidates are not required to purchase training or education materials from IPMI to pass the 
examination. IPMI’s education courses are not designed to serve as examination preparation classes. 
Attendance at IPMI courses and training is not a prerequisite to take the CAPP examination.

Examination Registration
Once an application is approved, applicants receive a Candidate Admission Letter via email with 
instructions on how to schedule an in-person or remote proctored exam.

Note: Applicants must bring letter to the test center (or show to their remote proctor) or they will be 
denied access to take the exam.

The examination is administered on computers at more than 180 countries around the world.  

Note: Candidates may not register for the exam until information is approved by the CAPP Certification 
Department.

Note: Candidates must test and pass the exam within one year of application approval.

Rescheduling an Examination Registration
Candidates scheduled to take the examination may reschedule or cancel for a $25 charge, if the request 
is made five working days in advance of the scheduled administration date. Additional non-U.S. 
(international) rescheduling fees may apply. The only reasons a candidate can reschedule an exam are:

 ■ Jury duty
 ■ Death in the immediate family*
 ■ Military deployment
 ■ Sickness

*Immediate family is defined as a person’s grandparents, parents, spouses, siblings, and children.

Note that proper documentation will be required for any of the four reasons before rescheduling to a new date.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 23 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022

https://login.parking-mobility.org/events/webinar
https://login.parking-mobility.org/events/online-instructor-led-training
https://login.parking-mobility.org/products/
https://ipmi.parking-mobility.org/
https://ipmi.parking-mobility.org/


Rescheduling a Missed Examination
The fee for rescheduling a missed examination administration appointment is $150. Additional retesting 
fees may apply outside the U.S. 

Examination Administration Rules and Regulations
Any individual who has engaged in conduct that compromises or attempts to compromise the integrity 
of the examination process will be subject to disciplinary action as sanctioned by the CAPP Certification 
Board, the Code of Ethics, and the CAPP Certification Board policies and procedures. Examinations are 
administered according to a strict protocol to ensure the examination’s security and protect the right of 
each candidate to a standardized testing experience.

Candidates are required to sign a security affidavit agreeing to abide by all rules and regulations.

For information on the remote proctored exam, click here.

For information on the testing center on-site exam, click here.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 24 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Application Process
Candidate Comments About Examination Questions

During the examination, candidates may post comments by clicking on the icon “Comment on this 
Question.” Upon completion, candidates may provide additional feedback about exam questions or 
process via the Examination Exit Survey.

Examination proctors may neither discuss nor comment on the examination contents. All comments and 
questions are reviewed and considered by the CAPP Examination Item Writing Committee. Neither the 
CAPP Examination Item Writing Committee, nor the CAPP Certification Board, nor IPMI staff, will discuss 
individual test questions or comments with candidates. Candidates should not expect a response to a 
comment unless it relates to a problem with the examination administration. Candidate comments or lack 
thereof may be taken into consideration as evidence during any appeals process (details of examination 
appeal procedures follow).

Note: no additional time is provided for candidates to make comments.

Examination Scoring and Reporting
The CAPP Certification Board works with its testing consultant and contractors in the development, 
administration, scoring, and reporting of the CAPP exam. The CAPP Certification Board approves the 
passing score (or passing/cut score) that is established with a committee of CAPPs who are led by a 
psychometrician using the Modified Angoff V standard-setting procedure. The raw passing score is 
translated into a scaled score. Passing the examination requires a scaled score of 70.

Candidates passing the examination receive notice they passed the exam. The CAPP examination is not 
intended to distinguish scores above the passing point; therefore, scores are not reported above the 
passing score.

Failing candidates receive a scaled score and a report indicating percent of questions the candidate 
answered correctly in each of the seven content areas of weakness. The report is designed to provide a tool 
for study and preparation for retaking the examination.

At the testing site, candidates receive a preliminary printed score report upon completion of the 
examination. At certain times in the test development process, scores may be withheld pending test/
question statistical review.

Retesting
Failing candidates can reapply to retake the examination upon payment of a $150 re-examination fee 
within their original one-year timeframe from the date of the application submission acceptance.

Additional retesting fees may apply outside the U.S.

Candidates are given one year in which to take and pass the examination. This one-year period includes 
any failures. The first retake may take place as soon as the $150 re-examination fee is received and 
processed. Candidates may retest up to three times within one year of initial application approval. An 
additional $150 re-examination fee must be paid for any subsequent retest. After the fourth failure there 
is a six-month waiting period, after which candidates need to submit a new application and pay the full 
initial application fees.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 25 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Examination Appeals
Candidates have the right to appeal examination results within the following specified criteria established 
by the CAPP Appeals and Discipline Committee.

Section 1: Grounds for Appeal

Appellants may appeal examination results in situations restricted to extraordinary circumstances that:
■ Arise coincidentally with the examination administration.
■ Are outside the control of the appellant.
■ Made the appellant’s experience different from other candidates (related to the examination

administration) and/or affected the candidate’s ability to receive credit for a test question (related
to the examination content).

■ Were severe enough to account for examination failure.
■ Were properly reported to the examination administrator and CAPP Appeals and Discipline

Committee.

Appellants must meet all the above criteria to submit an appeal.

If written documentation of extraordinary circumstances is not received by the CAPP Appeals and 
Discipline Committee within 72 hours of an examination, an appellant will forfeit the right to appeal.

Section 2: Method of Appeal

Appeals will:
■ Be provided in writing.
■ Detail the specific nature of the appeal and all documentation and information necessary for the

appeal to be adjudicated.
■ Be mailed (must be postmarked within 72 hours of the examination administration) or emailed to

the CAPP Appeals and Discipline Committee.
■ Include a non-refundable fee of $50.

Section 3: Appeal Procedures

Level One: CAPP Appeals and Discipline Committee Appeal Consideration:
■ An appeal will be submitted to the Appeals and Discipline Committee within 72 hours of the

candidate receiving examination scores. All communication from the Appeals and Discipline
Committee will be mailed to the address stated on the submitted appeal.

■ Two representatives of the Appeals and Discipline Committee will determine the validity of 
the appeal based upon the submitted documentation as to the existence of extraordinary
circumstances described in Section 1.01.

■ A CAPP Appeals and Discipline Committee representative will notify the appellant by mail within
10 business days of receipt of the appeal regarding whether the appeal has been accepted or
denied. Accepted appeals will be brought to the consideration of the CAPP Appeals and Discipline
Committee.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 26 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Level Two: Appeals and Discipline Committee Action:
■ Only appeals brought forth for consideration by the two representatives of the CAPP Appeals and

Discipline Committee will be reviewed by the full CAPP Appeals and Discipline Committee. The
Committee will review the appeal within 60 days.

■ The Appeals and Discipline Committee will review:
● The appellant’s statement of appeal.
● A statement from an IPMI staff member concerning the exam process relative to the appeal.
● Examiner reports and comments submitted by the appellant at the time of the examination.

■ The CAPP Appeals and Discipline Committee decision will be sent to the appellant by mail within
15 business days of the hearing.

■ No member of the CAPP Appeals and Discipline Committee will communicate directly with an
appellant. IPMI staff will communicate with the appellant.

Section 4: CAPP Appeals and Discipline Committee Decisions

The CAPP Appeals and Discipline Committee may take the following action based upon evidence 
presented by the appellant:

■ Grant the appeal.
■ Deny the appeal.
■ Deny the appeal and grant the appellant an attempt at the next examination administration at no

cost.

All decisions of the CAPP Appeals and Discipline Committee are final.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 27 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Awarding the Credential
Upon notification from the testing center that a candidate has passed the exam, candidates may use the 
credential of CAPP, if all requirements for certification are maintained. The CAPP credential may be used 
as part of a signature (e.g., on letterheads and business cards) and in accordance with the policies and 
procedures of the CAPP Certification Board.

Maintaining the Credential
The CAPP credential is valid for three years from the date it was awarded. Please see the Pro-Rate chart of 
the CAPP Recertification Guidelines to determine your point requirement for your first recertification cycle.

To maintain the CAPP credential, recertification requirements must be met every three years. 
Requirements include earning a total of 20 points that were earned during these three years and 
submitting them prior to the credential expiration date.

Points may be spread across the recertification matrix ensuring the Mandatory Program Types points are 
met. The recertification cycle begins on January 1 of the year following the award of the CAPP credential 
on a pro-rated schedule. Points may not be carried forward from one recertification period to another. The 
matrix that follows outlines the point distributions and requirements. For additional information, refer to 
the CAPP Recertification Guidelines.

Recertification Point Matrix
The following matrix outlines the recertification point distributions and requirements. A minimum of 20 
points per three-year certification cycle is required to recertify.

Program Type 1—Education
No point requirement
Note: Points must be earned through receipt of a degree or passing grade of a course offered/taken outside of a degree 
program, as bestowed by an accredited institution of higher education.

College-level course in a related professional discipline (e.g., urban 
planning, information technology, accounting, finance, economics) 2 points per class

Associate degree (or International equivalent) 8 points

Bachelor’s Degree (or International equivalent) 16 points

Master’s Degree (or International equivalent) 24 points

Doctorate 40 points

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 28 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Program Type 2—Professional Development/Continuing Education
Mandatory: 1 point*; Maximum: 4 points per year.
■ Annual IPMI Conference & Expo attendance at education sessions –One point is awarded per 

60-minute education session attended up to a maximum of 4 points annually.
■ IPMI Seminars/Courses/Training Programs—Points as assigned; up to max. 4 points per year.
■ Other Professional Seminars/Conferences (such as approved State and Regional education)—Points

as assigned; up to max. 4 points per year.

Note: Professional development courses/training examples include industry seminars, other professional training 
programs, other professional certificates. One point is awarded per continuing education hour of professional 
development/continuing education.

IPMI Annual Conference Attendance 4 points for attending 4, 1-hour education sessions

IPMI Seminars/Courses/Training Programs Points as assigned; up to max. 4 points per year**

Other Professional Seminars/Conferences Points as assigned; up to max 4 points per year**

Program Type 3—Board-Level Professional Service/Leadership/IPMI Committees
No minimum point requirement; Maximum: 2 points per year, per Board or IPMI Committee/4 points per year 
or 4 points per year for CAPP Mentor.

Program Type 4
Professional Presentation/Feature Article/Regular Column—Program Type 4—Professional Presentation/
Feature Article/Regular Column—Mandatory: 1 point *; No maximum. Each article/presentation/Parking & 
Mobility contribution is worth 1 point. Two blog posts per year for three years totaling six 200-word blogs are 
worth 1 point. Review guidelines for Parking & Mobility magazine and the IPMI Blog.

Program Type 5
Online Training Modules (e.g., webinars, web-based seminars, IPMI Online courses) - No minimum point 
requirement; Maximum: Unlimited

Attendance at an industry related online course (1 point per hour of instruction) Points as assigned**

Attendance at an industry related webinar (1 point per hour of instruction) Points as assigned**

Program Type 6—Re-taking the Certification Exam
Re-taking the Certification Exam: 20 points for passing the exam to recertify for the next three-year period.

Status of the Credential

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 29 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Certificants failing to recertify within the three-year window are forbidden to use the CAPP credential.

A certificant whose certification has lapsed will be reinstated if they apply again to obtain the credential 
and take and pass the CAPP exam.

Under special circumstances the following alternative statuses will be considered:
■ CAPP Retired status may be requested by CAPPs in good standing who are retiring or leaving the

profession. Requests must be made within one year of a CAPP’s retirement or professional change;
recertification requirements are waived for professionals holding this status. The designation CAPP
(Ret.) may be used. CAPP (Ret.) status cannot be reversed. To go back to CAPP certification, a new
application must be processed, and an exam must be passed.

■ Suspended status may be awarded in the case of extenuating circumstances that preclude a certificant
from earning the required points within the three-year recertification window (e.g., serious illness,
military leave, or family emergency.) The credential may not be used during suspension and may only
be reactivated after the missed recertification points have been made up and the CAPP is again in good
standing. The recertification date will not change despite the suspended status.

Fee Schedules

CAPP Application:
$475  for IPMI members

$700 for non-members (includes a $100 non-refundable 
administrative processing fee for both members and non-members)

Exam Administration: Failing to test within 12 months of an application approval will result 
in forfeiture of the entire $475/$700 application fee.

Rescheduling an examination:
$150  Failure to reschedule within a one-year window of the 

application approval will result in forfeiture of the entire 
$475/$700 CAPP application fee.

Retesting for failing candidates: $150  per retest in the United States. Additional fees may apply 
outside the U.S.

Recertification: $200  every three years for IPMI members/$300 every three years for 
non-members

No Show Fee: $150  per retest in the United States. Additional fees may apply 
outside the U.S.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 30 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Appendix A—Sample Exam Questions

1. What is the best practice to ensure data security?
A. Have a dedicated credit card server that is separate from the application server.
B. Have the software application and credit card transactions stored on the same server.
C. Provide a physical receipt to every customer.
D. Require a signature on all debit or credit card transactions.

Domain I. General Management: A. Demonstrates knowledge of the following management practices and 
techniques: 7. Electronic data security (e.g., encryption, data storage, backup, PCI compliance).

2. How can a business mitigate liability exposure related to reducing slip and fall claims?
A. Ensure lighting is at or above industry standard of 2 foot-candles.
B. Use a silane sealer.
C. Paint parking stripes yellow.
D. Maintain a maintenance log of the cleaning of stairwell rails.

Domain I. General Management: A. Demonstrates knowledge of the following management practices and 
techniques: 10. Risk management, including: a. Business practices/liability exposure (e.g., insurance, 
permits, licenses).

3. What does an effective job description describe?
A. Personality of preferred candidate.
B. Major areas of employee’s responsibilities
C. Compensation and benefit levels at each stage of responsibility
D. Advancement opportuniti3s.

Domain I. General Management: G. Reconize organizational human resources practices regarding: 1. Writing 
and updating employee job descriptions based on required skills and responsibilities.

4. What is the industry standard used for planning purposes to calculate the amount of square feet per
90° parking space?

A. 180 square feet.
B. 300 square feet.
C. 360 square feet.
D. 400 square feet.

Domain II. Project Management: A. Identify/recognize the variables and considerations of facility design 
(surface and structure) including: 1. Functional design.

5. What should you consider when developing a maintenance program for a facility located in
Zone III?

A. Rare instances of freezing and lack of salt use.
B. Common freezing and salt use.
C. Common freezing and limited use of salt.
D. Coastal chloride conditions.

Domain II. Project Management: A. Identify/recognize the variables and considerations of facility design 
(surface and structure) including: 5. Maintenance considerations.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 31 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



6. Who is best equipped to assist with competitive bidding, and can provide clarification to prospective
contractors during the bidding process?

A. The owner with decision-making authority for the structure.
B. The asset management department of the business.
C. The maintenance department who manage repairs.
D. The engineer who prepared the construction documents.

Domain II. Project Management: C. Explain the variables and considerations of procurement practices 
including: 2. Bid process (e.g., request for proposal/information/qualifications, selection process).

7. What best describes written cash-handling procedures?
A. They are consistently and routinely enforced and followed.
B. They may be overridden by management.
C. They can be modified to ensure economy and efficiency in cashiering.
D. They are used as guidelines by management.

Domain III. Financial and Operational Auditing: A. Performs strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and 
threats (SWOT) analyses.

8. Why do you conduct regular financial audits of a parking facility?
A. Meet accounting requirements.
B. Reduce theft.
C. Identify operational weaknesses.
D. Increase revenue.

Domain III. Financial and Operational Auditing: C. Performs internal financial audits.

9. You have been hired to manage a surface lot that has parking spaces that are clearly numbered with
signs and surface paint. Without knowing the customer base, which type of multi-space meter would
work best for this surface lot?

A. Pay and display.
B. Pay by space.
C. Pay and drive.
D. Pay by day.

Domain IV. Operations Management: A. Applies operations management based on: 4. Integration of 
technology (e.g., parking guidance systems, hand-held equipment, LPR).

10. What is the most effective method of preventing moisture intrusion in the concrete of parking
facilities?

A. Using preventive sealers.
B. Pressure washing.
C. Using polyurethane deck coating.
D. Mechanical sweeping.

Domain IV. Operations Management: C. Determines and follows a maintenance program schedule by: 
Performing in-house or subcontracted maintenance/repairs: 1. Structural (e.g., concrete, beams, coatings, 
sealants).

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 32 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



11. What is a fundamental community benefit of on-street parking enforcement?
A. Vehicle turnover.
B. Revenue generation.
C. Law enforcement.
D. Length of stay.

Domain IV. Operations Management: E. Establishes and supervises the parking system enforcement policy 
including: 1. Purpose of enforcement (e.g., safety, vehicle turnover requirements).

12. A policy to ensure that employees handle daily receipt deposits properly requires which of the
following?

A. Comparison of actual daily receipts to receipt tapes before deposits are submitted.
B. The conduct of blind counts to receipts without access to daily revenue reports.
C. Employees to double check each other’s receipts before submitting daily deposits.
D. Employees to submit their daily deposit without counting receipts.

Domain IV. Operations Management: F. Manage day-to-day financial operations including: 4. Evaluate 
internal operational policies to assess potential improvements: a. Cash and credit transaction processing 
procedures.

13. What should emergency/disaster management information that is posted for consumers include?
A. Maps showing “you are here” signage and corresponding exit routes.
B. The location of the nearest water valves.
C. Directions to the nearest emergency room.
D. A fire extinguisher.

Domain V. Marketing and Public Relations: B. Shares the details of emergency/disaster response(s) with 
stakeholders.

14. What are the three most important rules in crisis communication?
A. Know your communication system, procedures, and policies.
B. Demonstrate consistency, frequency and anchoring.
C. Know the facts, tell the truth, and tell it fast.
D. Contact the ICS, NIMS, and FEMA.

Domain V. Marketing and Public Relations: B. Shares the details of emergency/disaster response(s) with 
stakeholders.

15. A survey of parking facility customers indicates that the majority is long-term parkers, but a sizable
percentage is short-term visitors. Based on this information, what initiative would help increase
customer satisfaction for the fewest customers?

A. Coordinating a van pool program.
B. Installing bike lockers and a tire inflation station.
C. Adding a dry-cleaning service within the facility.
D. Adding a car wash operation within the facility.

Domain V. Marketing and Public Relations: C. Identifies and markets services based on stakeholder and 
service profiles, competitors, and feedback.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 33 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



16. What technology best facilitates communication between busses and riders?
A. Online posting of bus schedules and routes.
B. GPS bus tracking with real-time arrival information.
C. Traffic monitoring systems.
D. Multi-modal transportation system swipe cards.

Domain VI: Analysis and Application of Technology: E. Evaluate and/or employ real-time communications 
(e.g., GPS, parking availability, sensors, bus schedules/arrivals).

17. What technology is rapidly growing in use in urban garage operations to collect payments and verify
access credentials in real time?

A. Cashiers and automated systems.
B. Paper permits and parking passes.
C. Transit ticket/information kiosks.
D. Handheld and mobile devices.

Domain VI: Analysis and Application of Technology: E. Evaluate and/or employ real-time communications 
(e.g., GPS, parking availability, sensors, bus schedules/arrivals).

18. Which of the following, when used in a gated facility, maximizes the reduction of carbon emissions?
A. Magnetic stripe.
B. Proximity card.
C. RFID.
D. Barcode.

Domain VI: Analysis and Application of Technology: F. Evaluate and/or employ sustainable technologies 
(e.g., EV charging stations, smart lighting, solar panels, ride sharing, bicycle sharing, car sharing).

Answers

1.A 2.A E.B 4.B 5.B 6.D 7.A 8.C 9.B

10.C 11.A 12.B 13.A 14.C 15.B 16.B 17.D 18.C

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 34 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Appendix B—Candidate Application Packet

Congratulations on starting the process of becoming a CAPP. Before completing this application, please 
visit IPMI’s CAPP Certification page. Applicants must review this CAPP Candidate Handbook in its entirety 
to properly complete this application.

There are five parts to the application:
■ Part 1: Personal Information 
■ Part 2: Eligibility
■ Part 3: Candidate Endorsement
■ Part 4: Statement of Understanding 
■ Part 5: Payment Information

Please ensure all parts of the application are complete. If you have questions, please contact IPMI staff at 
capp@parking-mobility.org.

Application information is held in strict confidence. To view our privacy policy, please go to parking- 
mobility.org and click Privacy Policy.

Application Instructions
1. List your legal name: this is the name that will be submitted to the testing center. The name must match

the name on your government-issued picture identification card, which you will be required to present
at the testing center.

2. Once you have completed the application, scan and email it to capp@parking-mobility.org. Applications
will not be considered without payment. Applicants will be directed to an online invoice to process
payment securely..

3. Endorsements must not be included with the application. Your endorsement provider must complete
the Endorsement Form and email it to: capp@parking- mobility.org.

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 35 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022

mailto:capp@parking-mobility.org
https://www.parking-mobility.org/privacy-policy/
mailto:capp@parking-mobility.org
mailto:capp@parking-mobility.org


CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 36 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022

Application for the CAPP Examination

Application for the Examination
The completed application should be scanned and emailed to: 

capp@parking-mobility.org

Part 1. Personal Information

Legal Name:

Last _____________________________  First ______________________________ Middle ____________________________

Business Contact Information:

Organization:  ____________________________________________________________________________________________

Title:  ___________________________________________________________________________________________________

Address:  ________________________________________________________________________________________________

City ________________________________________________  State __________ ZIP/Postal Code ____________________

Country:  ________________________________________________________________________________________________

Phone (plus extension if applicable):  _________________________________________________________________________

Cell:  _____________________________________________  Email:  ______________________________________________

Home Contact Information:

Please address all CAPP communication using my home information  Yes  No

Address:  ________________________________________________________________________________________________

City ________________________________________________  State __________ ZIP/Postal Code ____________________

Country:  ________________________________________________________________________________________________

Phone (plus extension if applicable):  _________________________________________________________________________

Cell:  _____________________________________________  Email:  ______________________________________________

mailto:capp@parking-mobility.org


CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 37 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022

Application for the CAPP Examination

Part 2. Eligibility
Education, Experience, and Professional Development/Education Courses

To be eligible for the credential, you must meet the minimum education, experience, and professional 
development requirements: 41 points, plus nine additional points from any of the three eligibility categories, for 
a total of 50 points. The following matrix outlines the point distributions and requirements.

1. Education/License/credential: (Required Minimum Points: 4/Maximum Points: 40)
Note: License/credential holder must be in good standing with the licensing agency/credentialing body

 ■ Highest level of education achieved from an accredited educational institution:  
(High School Diploma or GED = 4 points; Associate Degree = 8 points;  
Bachelor’s Degree = 16 points; Master’s Degree = 24 points; Doctorate = 40 points) Points:__________

 ■ Applicable Professional Licensing: (e.g. engineer, architect, accountancy, construction, etc.):  
(8 points per license) Points:__________

 ■ Applicable Professional Certification (must be applicable to competency as a CAPP):  
(e.g., project management professional, LEED, PE, AIA, etc.): (4 points per designation) Points:__________

Total Education/License/Credential Points: Points:__________

2. Experience: (Required Minimum Points: 12 (3 years)/Maximum Points: 40 (10 years)
Note: Professional experience must be in supervisory and/or managerial roles and/or contact with same (e.g., consultants, vendors) and/
or equivalent experience in a related field. Equivalent experience in a related field must be combined with a minimum of three years of 
experience at any level in the parking, mobility, or transportation industry. No experience points are awarded for service in the parking, 
mobility, or transportation industry below the manager/supervisor level. Four points can be claimed for each year of management/
supervisory experience up to the maximum of 40 points.

Acceptable job titles are provided earlier in this handbook under “Candidate Eligibility Matrix/2. Experience.”

 ■ Managerial/Supervisory Parking/Transport Experience: _____ years × 4 points per year = __________

 ■ Related Managerial Supervisory Experience + 3 years in  
Parking/Mobility/Transportation Industry: _____ years × 4 points per year = __________

 ■ Total Experience Points: Points:__________

 ■ Professional Development/Continuing Education: (Required Minimum Points: 25/No Maximum)
Note: Professional development courses/training must have been completed within the past five years and be applicable to the role of the 
CAPP* (e.g., IPMI courses and training, other professional training programs, other professional certificates). One point is awarded per 
hour of professional development/continuing education.

*Note: Refer to the CAPP Examination Content Outline if you have any questions about the applicability of your professional development 
courses/continuing education.

 ■ Professional Development Continuing Education: Points:__________
 ■ Professional Certificate Award Continuing Education: Points:__________

Total Professional Development Points: Points:__________

Minimum Number of Eligibility Points Required: 50
Category Points 1. Education/License/Credential __________
 2. Experience __________
 3. Professional Development __________

Total Points: Points:__________



CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 38 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022

Application for the CAPP Examination

Part 3. Endorsement

Please provide the Application Endorsement Form with a copy of your Experience Documentation Form to a 
CAPP in good standing or to an employment supervisor who can attest to the accuracy on the application and 
your suitability for certification. The CAPP or employer is required to email the document to the Certification 
Department separately to capp@parking-mobility.org.*
*Do not include this document with your application.

Part 4. Statement of Understanding

To qualify for the CAPP credential, you must respond to the following questions and sign the Statement of 
Understanding:

1. CAPP Code of Ethics
I hereby attest that the following statements are true, correct, and accurate to the best of my knowledge, and I further agree to 
fulfill the following obligations:

a.  Yes  No — I agree to give the CAPP Certification Department timely notice of contact or address change in 
writing.

b.  Yes  No — Having read the CAPP Code of Ethics on the CAPP website, I hereby confirm that I have not violated 
any of its provisions in the past and will comply with all tenets in the future. I agree to act and conduct my professional 
practice in accordance with the currently adopted code.

c.  Yes  No — I understand that any intentional or unintentional failure to provide true and complete responses to 
this application may result in sanctions by the CAPP Appeals and Discipline Committee.

If you answered “no” to any statements above, please provide a written explanation on a separate page. Attach the page to 
this application.

2. Special Accommodations:
I am requesting special testing accommodations   Yes  No

If you answered “yes,” please attach documentation as specified in the CAPP Candidate Handbook. 

3. Privacy Policy: 
 Yes  No  I understand that a condition of certification is accepting all official correspondence from the CAPP 

Certification Board.

 Yes  No   I understand that refusal to accept official correspondence or requesting to have my personal information 
removed from the IPMI database will cause revocation of certification status.

For Non-IPMI Members Only:

By signing this document, I hereby attest that the information provided within and attached to this application is true, 
accurate, and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief. I understand and agree that the CAPP Certification Board 
has the right to contact any person, agency/entity, or organization to review or confirm any information provided in this 
application. I further agree to authorize the release of any information requested by the CAPP Certification Board regarding 
the review of this application. I further understand and agree that the CAPP Certification Board has the right to notify 
pertinent credentialing and professional organizations if it is determined that this application contains false information.

I understand and agree that CAPP certification and recertification depends upon my fulfillment of all required criteria and 
obligations, including compliance with the CAPP Code of Ethics and Policies and Procedures. I further agree to inform the 
CAPP Certification Board in a timely manner if I become the subject of any ethics, criminal, or lesser offenses, complaints, 
and/or charges.

mailto:capp@parking-mobility.org


CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 39 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022

Application for the CAPP Examination

I understand that all material included in this application becomes the property of the CAPP Certification Board upon receipt 
and that neither originals nor photocopies will be returned to me. If my certification is suspended or revoked, I agree to 
comply with all directives or orders of the CAPP Certification Board, including the return of all CAPP credentialing documents. 
I agree to comply with such directives and orders in a timely manner and at my own expense.

Signature: ______________________________________________________________  Date: ___________________________

Print Name:  _____________________________________________________________________________________________

Part 5. Payment
 I am an IPMI member applying for the CAPP Certification. $475 U.S. fee

 I am an IPMI non-member applying for CAPP Certification. $700 U.S. fee

 If paying by check, I understand my application will be held until the check clears.

Please select one:  credit card   check

To pay by credit card, please submit your application to capp@parking-mobility.org. Once the application is received, 
IPMI will send you an email with login instructions to make payment online with a credit card. For your application to be 
processed, the application fees must be paid within 48 hours.

To pay by check, please make all checks payable to: International Parking & Mobility Institute (IPMI) And remit to:

International Parking & Mobility Institute (IPMI) CAPP Processing Department
P.O. Box 3787
Fredericksburg, VA 22402 USA

Checks must be received within 10 business days of the CAPP Application submission, or your application will not be 
processed.

Application Checklist:
  Complete Part 1: Personal Information

  Complete Part 2: Eligibility Form, Certificates, and Supporting Documents/Education Experience

  Complete Part 3: Endorsement: Provide an endorsement form to a CAPP or employer with a copy of your Experience 
Documentation Form. The endorsement provider must scan and email a copy of your experience document along with the 
Endorsement Documentation Form to the CAPP Certification at capp@parking-mobility.org .

  Complete Part 4: Statement of Understanding and Signature

  Complete Part 5: Payment

mailto:capp@parking-mobility.org
mailto:capp@parking-mobility.org


Education/License/Credential Documentation Form
(Minium of a High School Diploma)

Candidate Name

Last, First, Middle ______________________________________________________ Date Submitted ____________________

Dates of Education 
or Receipt of License/

Credential

Names and Address of 
Educational Facility/License or 

Credential Issuing Body

Name and Title of Program 
(e.g., college major, XHZ, 

licensed XXX, certified ABC) Description of Courses of Study

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 40 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Experience Documentation Form
Note: Use this form to document your experience as a parking, mobility or transportation professional  

(minimum of three years required.) The original must be included with your application. A copy must be  
provided to the endorsement provider and included in the separate endorsement mailing.

Candidate Name

Last, First, Middle ______________________________________________________ Date Submitted ____________________

Dates of 
Employment

Organization Name and 
Address Name and Title of Supervisor

Description of Roles and Responsibilities 
related to Parking, Mobility and 

Transportation Management

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 41 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



Professional Development Documentation Form
Note: Refer to the CAPP Examination Content Outline if you have any questions about the applicability  

of your education/professional development. If more space is needed, please feel free to use  
an additional Word document with your information

Candidate Name

Last, First, Middle ______________________________________________________ Date Submitted ____________________

Dates of Education 
or Receipt of License/

Credential

Names and Address of 
Educational Facility/License or 

Credential Issuing Body

Name and Title of Program 
(e.g., college major, XHZ, 

licensed XXX, certified ABC) Description of Courses of Study

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 42 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



CAPP Application Endorsement Form
(Present this form to endorser with copy of training and experience documentation.)  

Please type or legibly print all information in black or blue ink. Sign, scan and email this form to:

International Parking & Mobility Institute 
ATTN: CAPP Certification Program | Email: capp@parking-mobility.org

CAPP Applicant Information:

Last _____________________________  First ______________________________ Middle ____________________________

Endorser’s Information:

Last _____________________________  First ______________________________ Middle ____________________________

Organization:  ____________________________________________________________________________________________

Title:  ___________________________________________________________________________________________________

Address:  ________________________________________________________________________________________________

City ________________________________________________  State __________ ZIP/Postal Code ____________________

Country:  ________________________________________________________________________________________________

Phone (plus extension if applicable):  _________________________________________________________________________

Cell:  _____________________________________________  Email:  ______________________________________________

Endorsement:

I,  ___________________________________________________________________________________ , hereby state that I am  

(select all that apply)

 A CAPP in good standing
 Licensed, commissioned, and/or certified as a:  ______________________________________________________________
 License/Certificate #s:  __________________________________________________________________________________
 Licensing body(ies):  ____________________________________________________________________________________
 Employment supervisor: Position/Title  ____________________________________________________________________

and am knowledgeable of, and in good standing within, the parking, mobility, and transportation profession. I hereby affirm 
that I personally know or have researched and reviewed to the best of my ability, the work history, experience, and reputation 
of the above-referenced candidate and find she/he meets the CAPP Certification Program eligibility requirements indicated 
in this handbook. In support of my findings, I have attached a copy of the applicant’s statement of experience as presented 
to me by the applicant. Based upon my findings, I hereby endorse the above-referenced applicant for consideration as a 
candidate for the CAPP Credentialing Program.

Submitted this _________________ day of _____________________________________________________, 20 ___________ .

Endorser’s signature:  ______________________________________________________________________________________

CAPP CERTIFICATION PROGRAM CANDIDATE HANDBOOK 43 VERSION 02 | DECEMBER 2022



What's New Has your department
completed the

mandatory trainings?

See page 8
RECRUITMENTS................................................ PAGE 3

VACANCIES.......................................................... PAGE 5

MANDATORY TRAININGS............................ PAGE 8

NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION.............. PAGE 9

CATASTROPHIC LEAVE DONATION...... PAGE 14

New hires now spend
their first day with HR!

Learn more on page 9

THE BI-WEEKLY HR NEWSLETTER FOR THE CITY OF BERKELEY

BERKELEY MATTERS PAGE 1

NOVEMBER 17, 2023



HR CONTACTS NOVEMBER 17, 2023

BERKELEY MATTERS PAGE 2

HR ADMINISTRATION

Aram Kouyoumdjian, HR Director

Dawud Brewer, Employee Relations Manager
DBrewer@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6821

Monica Walker, Human Resources Manager
MWalker@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6818

Jessica Lewis, Admin Support
JELewis@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6824

EMPLOYEE AND LABOR RELATIONS

Dawud Brewer
DBrewer@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6821

BENEFITS

Sophea Shephard
SShephard@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6815

Velma Wallace
VWallace@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6808

RECRUITMENT, EXAMS & SELECTION

Jeneen Miller-Edenburg
JeMiller@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6817

Rio Tess Musni
RMusni@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6805

Anna Gooler
AGooler@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6820

Michelle Yoo
MYoo@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6802

SAFETY, ERGONOMICS, CAL/OSHA

Kevin Walker
KWalker@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6825

Venus Thomas
VThomas@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6819

CITYWIDE TRAINING
Inquiries: Training@berkeleyca.gov

Wilhelmina Parker
WParker@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6823

Alejandra Alonso
AAlonso@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6801

WORKERS' COMP, ADA, LEAVES OF ABSENCE
Claims: HRWorkersComp@berkeleyca.gov

Cari McDonald
CMcDonald@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6816

Laura Zurita
LZurita@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6812

EEO MATTERS

Tamela Hopson-Dudley
THopson-Dudley@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6811

TRANSACTIONS

Tiana Dickson
TDickson@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6814

Casandra Huff
CHuff@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6894

Feuy Saephan
FSaephan@berkeleyca.gov
510-981-6822



Recruitment Reason Type Hourly Rate Opening Date Closing Date

Accounting Office Specialist II Vacancy Competitive $33.13 - $36.08 Continuous Continuous

Accounting Office Specialist III Vacancy Competitive $38.37 - $41.83 Continuous Continuous

Accounting Technician Vacancy Promotional $37.76 - $45.45 Continuous Continuous

Animal Control Officer
(Req#2023-01533)

Retirement Competitive $35.89 - $38.04 October 30, 2023
November 20,

2023

Animal Services Assistant Vacancy Competitive $31.66 - $33.44 Continuous Continuous

Aquatics Specialist I
Establish

a List
Competitive $21.64 Continuous Continuous

Assistant Civil Engineer Vacancy Competitive $55.41 - $67.02 Continuous Continuous

Assistant Fire Chief
Establish

a List
Promotional $90.38 - $99.45 October 30, 2023

November 20,
2023

Assistant Public Works Engineer Vacancy Competitive $43.01 - $63.86 Continuous Continuous

Assistant Recreation
Coordinator

Vacancy Competitive $32.14 - $37.38 Continuous Continuous

Associate Civil Engineer Vacancy Competitive $61.03 - $73.75 Continuous Continuous

Battalion Chief
Establish

a List
Promotional $79.67 - $92.23 October 30, 2023

November 20,
2023

Behavioral Health Clinician I/II Vacancy Competitive $41.96 - $53.99 Continuous Continuous

Building Inspector I/II (Certified) Vacancy Competitive $46.55 - $59.19 Continuous Continuous

Community Development
Project Coordinator

Vacancy Competitive $50.92 - $61.57 Continuous Continuous

Deputy Fire Chief Vacancy Competitive $97.12 - $117.84
November 6,

2023
November 27, 2023

Deputy Police Chief
(Req#2023-01402)

Vacancy Competitive $96.15 - $125.00
November 6,

2023
January 8, 2024

Electrician Vacancy Competitive $49.74 - $54.51 Continuous Continuous

Employee & Labor Relations
Analyst (HR Analyst)

Vacancy Competitive $50.93 - $68.30 Continuous Continuous

Firefighter Paramedic Lateral Vacancy Competitive $33.31 - $41.96 Continuous Continuous

Housing Inspector I (Certified) Vacancy Competitive $41.90 - $49.71 Continuous Continuous

Junior Public Works Engineer Vacancy Competitive $44.64 - $53.78 Continuous Continuous

Legislative Assistant Vacancy Competitive $37.80 - $53.19 Continuous Continuous

Marina Assistant Promotion Competitive $34.28 - $36.35 Continuous Continuous

Mechanic Vacancy Competitive $45.04 - $47.75 Continuous Continuous

Mental Health Clinical
Supervisor

Vacancy Competitive $51.07 - $65.32 Continuous Continuous

CLICK HERE

BERKELEY MATTERS PAGE 3

Applications must be submitted no later than 5pm on the closing date. 

For more information about the hiring process and to apply online:

RECRUITMENTS NOVEMBER 17, 2023

https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/jobs


BERKELEY MATTERS PAGE 4

Recruitment Reason Type Hourly Rate Opening Date Closing Date

Mental Health Nurse Vacancy Competitive $57.79 - $70.24 Continuous Continuous

Occupational Health and
Safety Officer

(Req#2023-01369)
Vacancy Competitive $52.58 - $63.54

November 13,
2023

December 4, 2023

Office Specialist III Vacancy Promotional $36.67 - $41.13 Continuous Continuous

Paramedic Vacancy Competitive $30.00 - $40.00 Continuous Continuous

Parking Enforcement Officer
(Req#2023-01456)

Promotion Competitive $34.94 - $36.97 October 23, 2023
November 20,

2023

Police Officer Lateral Vacancy Competitive $52.77 - $65.67 Continuous Continuous

Police Officer Recruit Vacancy Competitive $43.61 Continuous Continuous

Program Manager II -
Information Technology

(Req#2023-01264)
Promotion Competitive $64.90 - $78.53 Continuous Continuous

Psychiatrist Vacancy Competitive $91.42 - $135.07 Continuous Continuous

Public Health Nurse Vacancy Competitive $53.89 - $62.86 Continuous Continuous

Public Safety Dispatcher I Vacancy Competitive $33.48 - $36.58 Continuous Continuous

Public Safety Dispatcher II Vacancy Competitive $46.44 - $50.40 Continuous Continuous

Registered Environmental
Health Specialist

(Req#2023-01260)
Vacancy Competitive $47.51 - $55.06 Continuous Continuous

Registered Nurse Vacancy Competitive $52.20 - $57.86 Continuous Continuous

Revenue Development
Specialist I/II

Vacancy Competitive $39.22 - $58.07 Continuous Continuous

Revenue Development
Supervisor

Vacancy Competitive $52.15 - $63.03 Continuous Continuous

Senior Behavioral Health
Clinician

Promotion Competitive $50.45 - $58.89 Continuous Continuous

Senior Field Representative
(Req#2023-01205)

Promotion Competitive $39.58 - $43.01
November 6,

2023
November 27, 2023

Senior
Forestry Climber

(Req#2023-01584, 2023-01585)
Promotion Promotional $42.91 - $45.64

November 20,
2023

December 11, 2023

Senior Information Systems
Specialist

Retirement Competitive $49.05 - $58.45 Continuous Continuous

Senior Landscape Gardener
(Req#2023-01348)

Promotion Promotional $39.11 - $41.57 October 30, 2023
November 20,

2023

Senior Management Analyst Vacancy Competitive $53.80 - $65.04 Continuous Continuous

Senior Systems Analyst Vacancy Competitive $58.55 - $71.33 Continuous Continuous

Solid Waste and Recycling
Manager

(Req#2023-01233)
Vacancy Competitive $71.09 - $85.91

November 6,
2023

November 27, 2023

Supervising Public Health
Nurse

Vacancy Competitive $65.26 - $76.62 Continuous Continuous

RECRUITMENTS NOVEMBER 17, 2023



BERKELEY MATTERS PAGE 5

Classification Reason Department Contact

Administrative Assistant
(Req#2023-01516)

Promotion Public Works
Noah Budnick @ 981-7069
Nbudnick@berkeleyca.gov

Administrative Secretary
(Req#2023-01379)

Vacancy Public Works
Noah Budnick @ 981-7069
Nbudnick@berkeleyca.gov

Community Service Officer
(Req#2023-01350)

Vacancy Police
Melanie Turner @ 981-5970

Mturner@berkeleyca.gov

Customer Service Specialist II
(Req#2023-01529)

Promotion Finance
Sheri Jackson @ 981-7246
SJackson@berkeleyca.gov

Field Representative
(Req#2023-01593)

Vacancy Public Works
Julia Heath @ 981-6357
Jheath@berkeleyca.gov

Health Services Program Specialist
(Req#2023-01592)

Vacancy HHCS
Janice Chin @ 981-5121
Jchin@berkeleyca.gov

Librarian I
(Req#2023-01583, 2023-01600)

Vacancy Library
Francesca Neveu Gibson

FNeveuGibson@berkeleyca.gov

Mid-Level Practitioner
(Req#2023-01594)

Vacancy HHCS
Janice Chin @ 981-5121
Jchin@berkeleyca.gov

Paralegal
(Req#2023-01464)

Promotion City Attorney
Farimah Brown @ 981-6985

Fbrown@berkeleyca.gov

Traffic Maintenance Worker I
(Req#2023-01591)

Promotion Public Works
Noah Budnick @ 981-7069
Nbudnick@berkeleyca.gov

1) Have a career appointment in the specific classification listed AND be on the Transfer List OR
2) Have their name on an active Eligible List OR
3) Have their name on a Reinstatement List.

To be considered for the vacancies listed below, employees must:

Please call or email the department contact within one week of the job posting if you meet one
of the above criteria.

To have your name placed on the transfer list:  CLICK HERE

Please note: The job information provided here is for the benefit of the City of Berkeley employees ONLY

VACANCIES NOVEMBER 17, 2023

https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/berkeley/transferjobs


VACANCIES

BERKELEY MATTERS PAGE 6

Classification Reason Department Contact Duration

Community Service Officer
(Req#2023-01342)

Vacancy Police
Melanie Turner @ 981-5970

Mturner@berkeleyca.gov
NTE 3 years

Playground Leader Trainee
(Req#2023-01586, 2023-01587,

2023-01588)
Vacancy PRW

Stephanie Chu @ 981-5146
Schu@berkeleyca.gov

N/A

Temporary Groundskeeper
(Req#2023-01208)

Vacancy PRW
Bruce Pratt @ 981-6632
Bpratt@berkeleyca.gov

N/A

Classification Reason Duration Contact Opening Date Closing Date

Parking Enforcement Officer
(Req#2023-01535)

Vacancy NTE 1 year
Melanie Turner @ 981-5970

Mturner@berkeleyca.gov
October 23, 2023 November 20, 2023

Temporary vacancies with an eligible list

Temporary vacancies without an eligible list

Please note: The job information provided here is for the benefit of the City of Berkeley employees ONLY

If you have a career appointment in the specific classification listed, please apply to be on the
Transfer List AND call or email the department contact person within one week of the job
posting.

To have your name placed on the transfer list:  CLICK HERE

To apply to the recruitment for one of these vacancies: CLICK HERE

1) Have a career appointment in the specific classification listed AND be on the Transfer List OR
2) Have their name on an active Eligible List OR
3) Have their name on a Reinstatement List.

To be considered for the vacancies listed below, employees must:

Please call or email the department contact within one week of the job posting if you meet one
of the above criteria.

NOVEMBER 17, 2023

https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/berkeley/transferjobs
https://www.governmentjobs.com/careers/berkeley


BERKELEY MATTERS PAGE 7

CITYWIDE TRAININGS NOVEMBER 17, 2023

Topic Audience Location Completion Deadline

Harassment Awareness

All City Staff Online self-paced December 31, 2023Ethics Awareness

Active Shooter Awareness

Code of Conduct Series
All supervisors and

managers
Online self-paced December 31, 2023

Date Topic Audience Location

November 30, 2023
9:00am-12:00pm

ERMA Session B All City Staff Zoom - click here

December 7, 2023
9:00am-12:00pm

Microsoft Excel 1
Day 1

All City Staff

Zoom - click here
 December 14, 2023

9:00am-12:00pm
Microsoft Excel 1

Day 2
All City Staff

Please note that all internally-delivered City of Berkeley trainings are temporarily paused
as we evaluate the most effective delivery strategy. 

If you have any questions, please contact training@berkeleyca.gov

UPCOMING CLASSES

CLICK HERECITYWIDE MANDATORY TRAININGS:

CLICK HERE“NEW EMPLOYEE 101” SCHEDULE:

Please register in advance using the Zoom link associated with each class. After registering, you
will receive a confirmation email from Zoom containing information about joining the meeting.

https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZ0uceitpj8vGNbon2YoJwTqgyCo8ElkZxhz
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZElf-uspj8iGdJsbqVC9nzWR8wQsjDeG1AZ
mailto:training@berkeleyca.gov
https://cityofberkeley.lms.navexglobal.com/
https://cityofberkeley.sharepoint.com/:b:/r/sites/hr/Documents/All%20Employees/NEW%20EMPLOYEE%20NEW%20SUPERVISOR%20ORIENTATION%202023.pdf?csf=1&web=1&e=NAdj9u


Department Percent Completed

City Clerk 100%

Human Resources 100%

PRW* 95%

City Auditor’s Office 93%

Planning 93%

HHCS** 90%

City Manager’s Office 87%

Police 85%

Library 80%

Finance 78%

Public Works 77%

IT 70%

CLICK HERE

Complete your mandatory training online: 

BERKELEY MATTERS PAGE 8

MANDATORY TRAININGS NOVEMBER 17, 2023

As of November 15, the following departments have met or
exceeded 70% completion:

MANDATORY TRAININGS MUST BE COMPLETED BY
DECEMBER 31!

*excludes seasonal workers
**excludes Youth Enrollee Interns

https://cityofberkeley.lms.navexglobal.com/


New Employee Orientations Are Back!

BERKELEY MATTERS PAGE 9

NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION NOVEMBER 17, 2023

HR Manager Monica Walker leads new employees in taking the Oath or Affirmation at the
New Employee Orientation on November 13.

Introduction to City policies, employee benefits, and resources available
to staff
Issuance of photo ID badge and swipe card
Meeting with representatives of their prospective labor unions
Opportunity to complete mandatory trainings

This week, the Human Resources Department launched a revamped
Welcome to Berkeley program that combines an online process for
completing onboarding paperwork with an engaging, in-person orientation
experience. 

New hires will spend their first day with HR for an orientation including:

They will also receive a personalized City of Berkeley gift!

New Employee Orientations will take place on the first day of each pay
period and will last all day.

Staff will report to their departments starting on their second day of work.



Department Superuser(s)

City Auditor Caitlin Palmer, Erin Mullin

City Clerk Mark Numainville

Finance Greg Segraves

Fire
Evanney Salisi, Jamie Albrecht,
Karin Patubo-Tran, Sarah Lana

HHCS
Katherine Hawn, Kellie Knox,

Norlinh Stubbs, Roxana Andrade

Human Resources
Alejandra Alonso, Kevin Walker,

Monica Walker, Venus Thomas, Wilhelmina Parker

Information Technology Arnold Chan, Barry Jennings

Library Francesca Neveu Gibson, My Chan

Parks, Recreation & Waterfront Dissarae Guiton, Jacob Several

Planning & Development Lisa Cronin, Shirley Yunyi Chen

Police Jason Tillberg, Shelba Jasper

Public Works
Amanda Montez, Carisa Lubeck, Erika Barros,

Joy Brown, Keith Morin, Liam Garland, Noah Budnick

Rent Board Aimee Mueller

Introducing NEOGOV Learn

BERKELEY MATTERS PAGE 10

TRAINING SYSTEMS UPDATE NOVEMBER 17, 2023

Over 1500 built-in courses
A course builder with an easy-to-use interface
The ability to track employee license and certification renewals
High-quality training modules designed for end users of different skill/use levels

Say goodbye to VTA and hello to NEOGOV Learn!
The City’s legacy training administration and record keeping system is being replaced
with a robust learning management system.

NEOGOV Learn includes:

What does this mean for the existing virtual training assistant (VTA) system?
The active portion of the VTA system has been taken offline. No additional data or
records may be entered, but staff can still check records, training history, and any
other details usually accessible via VTA.

Points of Contact
Each department/division has one or more assigned superusers who can provide
information about the NEOGOV Learn system and implementation process. Once the
system is fully in use, they will be able to create courses, assign trainings to staff, and
run employee data reports.



Staff Appreciation Survey

BERKELEY MATTERS PAGE 11

TEAM UNITY NOVEMBER 17, 2023

Team Unity (formerly the Citywide Spirit Team) is developing
Berkeley-specific systems for staff appreciation, and they want your
input!

Take a short survey to let Team Unity know how you want to be
appreciated and recognized as a City of Berkeley employee. Your
feedback will help shape future staff appreciation events and gifts!

Scan the QR code or click this link to access the survey:
forms.office.com/g/zeT51Dq6Ju

Please complete the survey by November 30.

https://forms.office.com/g/zeT51Dq6Ju


Appointments

Name Classification Department

Kristina Litunovskaia Public Safety Dispatcher I Police

Penelope Cash Customer Service Manager IT

Xochilth Perez-Camacho Accounting Office Specialist II Finance

Erika Casey Office Specialist II Planning

Christina Rea Library Specialist II Library

Anne Hersch Land Use Planning Manager Planning

Uttara Ramakrishnan Associate Planner Planning

Jonathan Drews Paramedic Fire

Sean Egense Paramedic Fire

Alyssa Thompson Paramedic Fire

Lucas Williams Paramedic Fire

Trent Swain Paramedic Fire

Brandon Iki Paramedic Fire

Jack Thiebaud Paramedic Fire

Stanley Perens Paramedic Fire

David Jara Paramedic Fire

BERKELEY MATTERS PAGE 12

NEW HIRES, PROMOTIONS, &
RETIREMENTS

Retirements

Name Classification Department

Juliette Monheit Mental Health Nurse HHCS

Dana Westmoreland Senior Information Systems Specialist IT

NOVEMBER 17, 2023



Creating an emergency fund
Reducing your high-interest debt
Saving for larger purchases

EMPOWER 457 - CITY OF BERKELEY DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

How’s your financial wellness stacking up?

Financial wellness is important and means different things to different people. Many
influences in your life can affect your finances — especially your ability to save for your
future. To help keep your long-term strategy on track, consider how you can improve
your approach to the following important areas:
 

EMPOWER 457 & CALPERS 457

BERKELEY MATTERS PAGE 13

SCHEDULE AN APPOINTMENT ONLINE:

OR EMAIL JOSE.ANAYA@EMPOWER.COM

CLICK HERE

Contributions made through automatic payroll deductions
Pre-tax contributions and tax-deferred growth

With the CalPERS 457 plan, you benefit from:

Learn more by scheduling a one-on-one meeting!

SCHEDULE AN APPOINTMENT ONLINE:

OR EMAIL NANCY.GARRITY@VOYA.COM
OR CALL 888-713-8244 EXT 2

CLICK HERE

NOVEMBER 17, 2023

https://joseanaya.empowermytime.com/#/
https://hso8vkeybn.timetap.com/


CLICK HERE

CATASTROPHIC LEAVE DONATION

BERKELEY MATTERS PAGE 14

If you would like to donate leave, please check your MOU for
allowable donations and complete the Leave Transfer Form:

The following staff are dealing with serious medical conditions and
have exhausted all of their available leave. Any donations of leave
would be greatly appreciated.

NOVEMBER 17, 2023

Nicole Traylor
Deon Catlett

Joshua Oehler
Peter Maul

http://webserver4/bmatters/getattachment.asp?recid=563
https://berkeleyca.gov/your-government/jobs/union-agreements-and-employee-manuals



	Agenda 2023-12-04
	Draft Minutes 2023-11-06
	Adjustment to City Attorney Salary Range and Revised Salary - Revised
	01. Staff Report
	02. CAPP Certification Handbook
	2023-11-17

	undefined: 
	undefined_2: 
	undefined_3: 
	undefined_4: 
	undefined_5: 
	undefined_6: 
	undefined_7: 
	undefined_8: 
	undefined_9: 
	Associate degree or International equivalent: 
	Masters Degree or International equivalent: 
	Doctorate: 
	CAPP Application: 
	Exam Administration: 
	Recertification: 
	No Show Fee: 
	Last: 
	First: 
	Middle: 
	Organization: 
	Title: 
	Address: 
	City: 
	State: 
	ZIPPostal Code: 
	Country: 
	Phone plus extension if applicable: 
	Cell: 
	Email: 
	Address_2: 
	City_2: 
	State_2: 
	ZIPPostal Code_2: 
	Country_2: 
	Phone plus extension if applicable_2: 
	Cell_2: 
	Email_2: 
	Check Box143: Off
	Check Box144: Off
	Points: 
	Points_2: 
	Points_3: 
	Points_4: 
	Acceptable job titles are provided earlier in this handbook under Candidate Eligibility Matrix2 Experience: 
	years  4 points per year: 
	undefined_10: 
	years  4 points per year_2: 
	Points_5: 
	Points_6: 
	Points_7: 
	Points_8: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	Points_9: 
	Check Box116: Off
	Check Box117: Off
	Check Box118: Off
	Check Box119: Off
	Check Box120: Off
	Check Box121: Off
	Check Box122: Off
	Check Box123: Off
	Check Box124: Off
	Check Box125: Off
	Check Box126: Off
	Check Box127: Off
	Date: 
	Print Name: 
	Check Box128: Off
	Check Box129: Off
	Check Box130: Off
	Check Box131: Off
	Check Box132: Off
	Check Box133: Off
	Check Box134: Off
	Check Box135: Off
	Check Box136: Off
	Check Box137: Off
	Last First Middle: 
	Date Submitted: 
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 
	Text5: 
	Text6: 
	Text7: 
	Text8: 
	Text9: 
	Text10: 
	Text11: 
	Text30: 
	Text31: 
	Text32: 
	Text33: 
	Text34: 
	Text35: 
	Text36: 
	Text37: 
	Text38: 
	Text39: 
	Text40: 
	Text41: 
	Text42: 
	Text43: 
	Text44: 
	Text45: 
	Text46: 
	Text47: 
	Text48: 
	Text49: 
	Text88: 
	Text89: 
	Text90: 
	Text91: 
	Text92: 
	Text93: 
	Text94: 
	Text95: 
	Text96: 
	Text97: 
	Last First Middle_2: 
	Date Submitted_2: 
	Text21: 
	Text22: 
	Text23: 
	Text24: 
	Text25: 
	Text26: 
	Text27: 
	Text28: 
	Text29: 
	Text50: 
	Text51: 
	Text52: 
	Text53: 
	Text54: 
	Text55: 
	Text56: 
	Text57: 
	Text58: 
	Text98: 
	Text99: 
	Text100: 
	Text101: 
	Text102: 
	Text103: 
	Text104: 
	Text105: 
	Text106: 
	Text107: 
	Text108: 
	Text109: 
	Text110: 
	Text111: 
	Text112: 
	Text113: 
	Text114: 
	Text115: 
	Last First Middle_3: 
	Date Submitted_3: 
	Text12: 
	Text13: 
	Text14: 
	Text15: 
	Text16: 
	Text17: 
	Text18: 
	Text19: 
	Text20: 
	Text59: 
	Text60: 
	Text61: 
	Text62: 
	Text63: 
	Text64: 
	Text65: 
	Text66: 
	Text67: 
	Text68: 
	Text69: 
	Text70: 
	Text71: 
	Text72: 
	Text73: 
	Text74: 
	Text75: 
	Text76: 
	Text77: 
	Text79: 
	Text80: 
	Text81: 
	Text82: 
	Text83: 
	Text84: 
	Text85: 
	Text86: 
	Last_2: 
	First_2: 
	Middle_2: 
	Last_3: 
	First_3: 
	Middle_3: 
	Organization_2: 
	Title_2: 
	Address_3: 
	City_3: 
	State_3: 
	ZIPPostal Code_3: 
	Country_3: 
	Phone plus extension if applicable_3: 
	Cell_3: 
	Email_3: 
	endorser name: 
	Licensed commissioned andor certified as a: 
	LicenseCertificate s: 
	Licensing bodyies: 
	Employment supervisor PositionTitle: 
	Submitted this: 
	day of: 
	20: 
	Check Box138: Off
	Check Box139: Off
	Check Box140: Off
	Check Box141: Off
	Check Box142: Off


